il

Tewkesbury
Borough Council

11 January 2021

Committee Planning
Date Tuesday, 19 January 2021
Time of Meeting 10:00 am

This is a remote meeting in accordance with the Local Authorities
and Police and Crime Panels (Coronavirus) (Flexibility of Local
Authority and Police and Crime Panel Meetings) (England and

Wales) Regulations 2020.

Members of the public will be able to view this meeting whilst it is
in session by clicking on the link that will be available on the
Agenda publication page immediately prior to the commencement
of the meeting.

Agenda

1. ANNOUNCEMENTS

2. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND SUBSTITUTIONS
To receive apologies for absence and advise of any substitutions.

3. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
Pursuant to the adoption by the Council on 26 June 2012 of the
Tewkesbury Borough Council Code of Conduct, effective from 1 July
2012, as set out in Minute No. CL.34, Members are invited to declare any
interest they may have in the business set out on the Agenda to which the
approved Code applies.

4. MINUTES 1-21

To approve the Minutes of the meeting held on 15 December 2020.

Gloucester Road Tewkesbury Glos GL205TT Member Services Tel: (01684) 272021 Fax: (01684) 272040
Email: democraticservices@tewkesbury.gov.uk Website: www.tewkesbury.gov.uk


mailto:democraticservices@tewkesbury.gov.uk
http://minutes.tewkesbury.gov.uk/ieDocHome.aspx?Categories=

Item

DEVELOPMENT CONTROL - APPLICATIONS TO THE BOROUGH
COUNCIL

@)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

)

20/00446/FUL - 51 Sandycroft Road, Churchdown
PROPOSAL.: Erection of a single storey side and rear extensions
OFFICER RECOMMENDATION: Permit

20/00993/FUL - 26 Winston Road, Churchdown

PROPOSAL: Erection of a two storey side extension

OFFICER RECOMMENDATION: Permit

20/00732/FUL - 3 Hertford Road, Bishops Cleeve

PROPOSAL.: Erection of a single storey side / rear extensions and
front / rear dormer extensions

OFFICER RECOMMENDATION: Permit

20/01006/FUL - 34 Rosefield Crescent, Newtown

PROPOSAL: Erection of a single storey rear extension

OFFICER RECOMMENDATION: Permit

20/00107/FUL - Buckland Manor Farm, Buckland

PROPOSAL: Demolition of an existing agricultural workers dwelling,
the erection of an open market replacement dwelling of exceptional
guality design and the erection of a barn incorporating a bat roost.
OFFICER RECOMMENDATION: Delegated Permit

20/00240/FUL - Copper Close, Bushcombe Lane, Woodmancote
PROPOSAL: Section 73 application for the variation of conditions
3,4,5,7 and 8 of planning permission 12/01190/FUL to allow changes

to the boundary treatments and to the design and footprint of plot 1

OFFICER RECOMMENDATION: Permit

CURRENT APPEALS AND APPEAL DECISIONS UPDATE

To consider current planning and enforcement appeals and Ministry of

Housing, Communities and Local Government (MHCLG) appeal decisions.

Page(s)

22-31

32-39

40 - 46

47 - 55

56 - 83

84 - 94

95-99



ltem Page(s)

DATE OF NEXT MEETING
TUESDAY, 16 FEBRUARY 2021
COUNCILLORS CONSTITUTING COMMITTEE

Councillors: R A Bird, G F Blackwell, R D East (Vice-Chair), J H Evetts (Chair), L A Gerrard,
M A Gore, D J Harwood, M L Jordan, E J MacTiernan, J R Mason, P W Ockelton, A S Reece,
P E Smith, R J G Smith, P D Surman, R J E Vines, M J Williams and P N Workman

Substitution Arrangements

The Council has a substitution procedure and any substitutions will be announced at the
beginning of the meeting.

Recording of Meetings

In accordance with the Openness of Local Government Bodies Regulations 2014, please be
aware that the proceedings of this meeting may be recorded.




Agenda Item 4

TEWKESBURY BOROUGH COUNCIL

Minutes of a Meeting of the Planning Committee held remotely on
Tuesday, 15 December 2020 commencing at 10:00 am

Present:
Chair Councillor J H Evetts
Vice Chair Councillor R D East

and Councillors:

R A Bird, G F Blackwell, M A Gore, D J Harwood, M L Jordan, E J MacTiernan, J R Mason,
P W Ockelton, A S Reece, P E Smith, R J G Smith, P D Surman, R J E Vines, M J Williams and
P N Workman

PL.42 ANNOUNCEMENTS

42.1 The Chair advised that the meeting was being held under the emergency provisions
of the Coronavirus Act 2020 and, specifically, The Local Authorities and Police and
Crime Panels (Coronavirus) (Flexibility of Local Authority and Police and Crime
Panel Meetings) (England and Wales) Regulations 2020. The meeting was being
broadcast live via the internet, it was not being recorded by the Council but, under
the usual transparency rules, it may be being recorded by others.

42.2 The Chair outlined the procedure for the meeting, including public speaking.

PL.43 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND SUBSTITUTIONS
43.1 An apology for absence was received from Councillor L A Gerrard. There were no
substitutions for the meeting.

43.2 The Chair took the opportunity to remember Anna Hollaway who had been a
Member of the Planning Committee but had sadly passed away. He indicated that
she and her family were very much in the thoughts of the Committee.

PL.44 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

44.1 The Committee’s attention was drawn to the Tewkesbury Borough Council Code of
Conduct which was adopted by the Council on 26 June 2012 and took effect from
1 July 2012.
44.2 The following declarations were made:
Councillor Application Nature of Interest Declared
No./Agenda Item (where disclosed) Action in
respect of
Disclosure
G F Blackwell Agenda ltem 5 (b)  Is a Member of Would speak
Tree Preservation Churchdown Parish  and vote
Order 404 Land Council but has

1



44.3

PL.45

45.1

PL.46

46.1

46.2

46.3

adjacent 25 Paynes
Pitch

taken no part in this
matter

PL.15.12.20

M L Jordan Agenda Item 5(b) Is a Member of Would speak
Tree Preservation Churchdown Parish and vote
Order 404 Land Council but has
adjacent 25 Paynes taken no part in this
Pitch matter

R J G Smith Agenda Item 5(b) Is a Member of Would speak
Tree Preservation Churchdown Parish and vote

Order 404 - Land Council but has
adjacent 25 Paynes taken no part in this
Pitch matter

Councillor M J Williams noted that Agenda Item 5e — 1 Down Hatherley Lane, Down
Hatherley was in his Ward (Severn Vale South). There were no further declarations
made on this occasion.

MINUTES

The Minutes of the meeting held on 17 November 2020, copies of which had been
circulated, were approved as a correct record.

DEVELOPMENT CONTROL - APPLICATIONS TO THE BOROUGH COUNCIL

The objections to, support for, and observations upon the various applications as
referred to in Appendix 1 attached to these Minutes were presented to the
Committee and duly taken into consideration by Members prior to decisions being
made on those applications.

20/00028/FUL - Part Parcel 0706, Old Pamington Road, Pamington

This application was for the formation of a biofertiliser lagoon with fenced enclosure
and formation of access road with turning area.

The Planning Officer explained that the application, which was submitted in full,
sought the installation of a lined and covered biofertiliser storage lagoon, bunds,
fencing, associated means of access and landscaping including the removal of
existing hedgerows on approximately a 0.8 hectare parcel of agricultural land to the
east of the B4079. The lagoon would be used for the storage of biofertiliser
produced by anaerobic digestion, including from the applicant’s anaerobic digestion
plant in Toddington. The application advised that the lagoon would be used by local
agricultural enterprises to meet growing crops needs and during the open spreading
season the fertiliser would be transferred to the adjoining land via an umbilical
spreading system. The National Planning Policy Framework stated that planning
policies and decisions should help create the conditions in which businesses could
invest, expand and adapt and significant weight should be placed on the need to
support economic growth and productivity, taking into account both local business
needs and wider opportunities for development. In respect of the rural economy, the
National Planning Policy Framework also stated that planning decisions should
enable the development and diversification of agricultural and other land-based rural
businesses and this lent weight in favour of the economic dimensions of
sustainability as defined in the Framework. There would be some harm to the
landscape arising from the proposal which was explained in the Committee report
and that was a factor that weighed against the proposal in the overall planning
balance, but the landscape impact was tempered by the site context, design

2



46.4

PL.15.12.20

approach, landscape mitigation and by virtue that the application site was not
identified as a ‘valued’ landscape in the development plan. Further to consultation
with consultees, and subject to the imposition of suitable conditions, Officers
considered there would be an acceptable impact relating to residential amenity,
highway safety, flood risk and drainage, ecology and loss of hedgerows/vegetation.
It was therefore concluded that the proposed development was generally supported
in principle by the National Planning Policy Framework. Whilst there would be some
impacts on the area, as identified, it was considered that the benefits of the proposal
outweighed the harm and the application was therefore recommended for
permission.

The Chair invited a representative of the applicant to address the Committee. He
indicated that it was his role, as a senior manager in the business, to assist with the
management of the company’s waste treatment sites and national biofertilizer
management operations, the latter of which was particularly relevant to the
application before the Committee today. The representative thanked all of the
relevant departments, regulators and the local community who had both commented
and taken an interest in the proposal and expressed his gratitude to everyone
including his company who demonstrated an ongoing commitment to local and
national sustainability projects like the one before the Committee today. Whilst he
acknowledged that the process to date had been a bit drawn out, he stressed that
his company was completely sympathetic to peoples thoughts and concerns,
however, it was felt strongly that this site was perfect for the development given the
rural location and the direct access to the land where the biofertiliser would be
applied. In addition, with only several campaigns operating each year, only minimal
disruption would be created. The operation also worked within a closed environment
with all mechanised parts and pumps situated on the lorries and not permanently
aligned with the site. Over the last year, issues had been noted with fly tipping at the
entrance to the site so the applicant offered complete commitment to the safety and
security of the site, ensuring that any illegal activity in that regard was quashed.
There would be complete commitment to high standards and landscaping and
environmental and ecological improvement and diversity was at the core of what the
business was all about. The applicant indicated that he could confidently and
proudly reiterate that the company shared a common goal of focussing business
efforts towards enhancing the environment, strengthening the economy and social
wellbeing as a community. The planning application had been collated and
submitted to develop a storage facility for liquid biofertiliser produced and certified
by a local award-wining anaerobic digestion facility operator. As a company it
currently managed approximately 600,000 tonnes of biofertiliser in both liquid and
solid form with operations including the transportation, storage and spreading of
biofertilisers. The other storage lagoons it had developed and operated mirrored the
format and high standard of the one relating to the current application. Biofertilisers
had been used in farming for over a hundred years and modern applications offered
benefits of enhanced treatment, high levels of readily available nitrogen, trace
elements and importantly organic matter. Soil health globally and locally was
entering a state of emergency with desertification being a very real problem with
over 50% of global topsoil’s being depleted over the last 150 years. Restoring soil
lost by erosion was an extremely moderate process and it could take 500 years for
2.5cm of soil to shape which, again, reiterated the need for biofertiliser application
on our sails.



46.5

PL.15.12.20

One of the local Member’s for the application site noted that there had been quite a
lot of objections from the local community particularly relating to odour, highway and
environmental issues. She indicated that she wished to go through a few points
detailed in the Committee report and check that sufficient conditions would be
applied to the application should it be permitted. In particular, she wished to be
assured of the ongoing commitment to maintaining this site in accordance with the
Environment Agency requirements. She indicated that there were major concerns
about contamination and runoff which could affect the habitat of the Great Crested
Newts which were in the locality and were a protected species; it was feared that
any water runoff would go into the local surrounding landscape. She referred to
Page No. 33 of the Committee report which detailed the comments of the
Environment Agency and particularly highlighted Paragraph 4.12 in relation to the
containment lagoons and the development complying fully with the terms of The
Water Resources (Control of Pollution) (Silage, Slurry and Agricultural Fuel Oil)
(England) (SSAFO) Regulations 2010 and as amended 2013; Paragraph 4.13 which
recommended that a comprehensive Construction Quality Assurance Plan (CQA)
be submitted to the authority based on the design considerations presented by a
Structural Engineer; Paragraph 4.14 which recommended that the lagoons
containing biologically degradable material would require an under drainage layer
and sump and Paragraph 4.15 which recommended that consideration be given to
provision of effective escape routes in the event a person fell into the lagoon. She
questioned whether all these matters had been covered in the application together
with the necessary maintenance going forward. In Paragraph 4.16, the Environment
Agency was asking for prior notification of any new, reconstructed or enlarged slurry
store, silage clamp or fuel stores and the Council’s own Landscape Officer had
concerns about the visual impact of the bund with a 2.4m fence on top and was
suggesting that this should be controlled by planning condition. The Member noted
that the application was being recommended for permit, as opposed to a delegated
permit, and questioned whether sufficient conditions had been applied to ensure it
would have minimal visual impact. She referred to previous instances where fencing
had been put up after the event and it had not always looked good, therefore she
required assurances that this would be adequately covered in the conditions applied
to this application. She sought assurance that properties would not be affected by
odour, she could see from the report that Teddington and Oxenton Villages had
been considered but there were other isolated settlements along the A435 which
included the travelling showmen'’s site and she wished to check that this
development had been included in the assessment as to whether it could potentially
be affected by odour from this application site. The Planning Officer indicated that,
in terms of the Environment Agency comments, the proposal would be managed
and had to be developed in accordance with the SSAFO Regulations 2010 and
2013 therefore the applicant had to comply with those standards. In terms of
Paragraph 4.13, this related to earth banked lagoons where the banks were raised
above ground level and the embankment slope was steeper than 1 in 2.5 but as the
embankment structure in respect of this application would not exceed the 1 in 2.5
depth slope there was no requirement for a CQA, it was the case that the geo
membrane light liners proposed were fairly robust and would be regularly inspected
by the applicant and the application included, in the design and access statement, a
leak detection system that would be put in place. However, ultimately should a leak
occur, it would be a matter for the Environment Agency and Environmental Health to
deal with and the Environment Agency would oversee the management under the
SSAFO Regulations. In terms of odour impact on neighbouring properties,
Environmental Health had been consulted on the application and was satisfied that
there would not be any unacceptable impact on residents; that was not to say that
there would not be some odour particularly when spreading was taking place but as
this was an agricultural activity in any event it was not considered that the
application would result in an adverse impact on receptors. In terms of the point on

4



46.6

PL.15.12.20

fencing, it was recommended that a condition be imposed to control the details of
the fencing. The Development Manager referred to the local Member’s reference to
a travelling showmen’s site and clarified that the development to which she referred
was in fact a gypsy site that had recently been granted planning permission and,
although not shown on the plans, it was no nearer to the application site than other
developments that had been assessed and found to be acceptable in terms of
impact from this application. Further assurance was sought that the lagoon would
only be used for bio mass waste and the Planning Officer stated that the application
was for a biofertilizer lagoon for treated waste and that was the basis on which the
application had been considered and would be determined.

It was proposed and seconded that the application be permitted in accordance with
the Officer recommendation. In seconding the motion the Member compared the
application to how food waste was dealt with as he understood that there was a
lagoon at Wingmoor Farm where the bi-product of the gas creation was stored
before it was shipped out to various farms. In debating the motion one of the local
Member’s referred to the lagoon at Wingmoor Farm and the problems with odour,
not only for those living in the local area but also for miles around. It was her view
that the application site was not the right place for this lagoon as it would impact on
local villages and there was also a potential impact on the Garden Town which
would be coming forward in the future. She was not convinced that ongoing
maintenance would ensure there would not be any contamination from runoff into
the surrounding landscape and on that basis she could not support the application.
Another Member referred to a similar lagoon in his village and explained that before
the content was pumped onto the land, a tractor was used like a whisk to stir it up,
this process went on for about 18 hours and created a smell in the village albeit
something that the village was used to this would not be the case in the areas
affected by this proposal and potential growth areas such as the Garden Town.
Another Member referred to gas leakage from the lagoon and queried whether it
would be covered to combat odours. The Planning Officer confirmed that there
would be a floating cover coloured black to minimise the impact on the landscape.
In terms of gas leakage another Member referred to Paragraph 4.14 of the Officer
report which contained a comment from the Environment Agency as follows: “All
geomembrane liners are susceptible to leakage which may allow biologically
degradable material under the lagoon liner. Anaerobic conditions evolve gas which
inflates the liner and allows more liquid to leak, generating more gas and further
inflation of the liner until failure occurs. Therefore we recommend that lagoons
containing biologically degradable material will require an under drainage layer and
sump to allow collection of any leaked liquid and a system to vent any small
quantities of gas evolved.” On this basis she asked whether there was a condition
attached that covered this recommendation from the Environment Agency. The
Planning Officer indicated that currently there was not a condition specifically
requesting those details, although the applicant had indicated that protection
systems would be put in place so it would be possible to add a condition asking for
the exact details but this would also be part of the role of the Environment Agency.
The Chair enquired as to why such a condition had not been included and the
Planning Officer indicated that, as the proposal would have to be developed in
accordance with the Environment Agency guidelines, it was almost a double
regulation but it was a condition that could be imposed to give the authority more
certainty. One of the local Member’s reiterated that this was her concern with this
application as she did not feel that the conditions were robust enough to cover all of
the issues that had been raised in the report in particular in relation to ongoing
maintenance, and on that basis she could not support the application which she
believed would have a fundamental affect on the area which abutted the Area of
Outstanding Natural Beauty (AONB). She maintained that the conditions should
cover all of the points raised by the Environment Agency on Page No. 33 of the
report and also that of the Council’s Landscape Officer to ensure that there were
sufficient conditions that covered any eventuality of rainwater runoff that could

5



46.7

46.8

PL.15.12.20

contaminate the local area and surrounding landscape. The Development Manager
indicated that in terms of the issues raised by the Environment Agency set in
Paragraphs 4.12 to 4.16 with the absence of the gradient of the bund and also the
surface water runoff it was possible to look at the conditions to make sure that the
planning permission would address the issues raised. He indicated that the view
had been taken that those matters should be addressed through the legislation but
he understood Members desire for greater certainty. He indicated that it would be
an option for the Committee to delegate authority to him to make sure all those
points were addressed by conditions and if he felt that this could not be achieved
then the application would be brought back to Committee. The proposer and
seconder of the motion to permit indicated that they were prepared to amend their
motion to a delegated permit in order to encapsulate the conditions discussed.
Further concern was expressed about the risk of pollution and damage to the
environment due to inadequate monitoring and the Development Manager indicated
that he was sure the local community and Members would be monitoring the
situation and any concerns would be raised with the proper authorities to ensure the
site was operated in the right way. Upon being put to the vote, it was

RESOLVED That permission be DELEGATED to the Development Manager
subject to conditions being added to ensure the requirements of
the Environment Agency are met as set out in Paragraphs 4.12
to 4.16 of the Officer report with the exception of conditions in
relation to the gradient as the embankment slope was proposed
to be less than the 1 in 2.5 gradient requiring a CQA Plan and
surface water runoff.

20/00270/FUL - Overton Farm, Maisemore

This was a retrospective application for the erection of a cement storage silo at
Overton Farm in Maisemore.

The Planning Officer advised that the application was for the retention of a silo. The
silo was a cream coloured vertical steel tank 10.6 metres in height and was located
in the utilities depot. The supporting statement had set out that the silo was
essential to the applicant’s trenching works to allow storage of cement at the site
and to run a volumetric concrete lorry to supply concrete for the trenching works. A
Committee decision was required as the Parish Council had objected on the
grounds that there was an unacceptable visual intrusion into the landscape. Due to
those concerns, a landscape assessment had been requested and submitted on 13
August. The landscape assessment stated that, although sited on a hill, the silo was
located within an active established utilities depot and close to large scale
agricultural buildings, where agricultural silos of similar scale and appearance were
an accepted part of the farming landscape. The Council’'s Landscape Officer had
been consulted and had concluded that, whilst there were clearly some views of the
silo from points in the surrounding countryside, the impact on landscape character
was minimal and the visual effect was restricted to glimpsed, filtered or longer
distance views and did not significantly detract from the largely rural setting of the
site. In terms of residential amenity, the nearest property was Woodcroft Cottage
but due to the topography of the site and screening it was not considered that this
property would be unduly affected by the application. Environmental Health had
been consulted and following a request for further information was satisfied that
there would be no undue impact. Overall, it was considered that the benefits the silo
would bring to the efficient operation of the utilities depot would outweigh the harm
to the landscape in this case and the recommendation was to permit.



46.9

46.10

46.11

46.12

46.13

PL.15.12.20

The Chair invited the applicant’s agent to address the Committee. She advised that
the application was for a small but important item of plant to assist with the
operation of the utilities depot at Overton Farm. The applicant had been based at
Overton for over a decade and in that time had grown considerably now being a
significant employer with over 400 staff members. The company was very
conscious, not just of its role as a significant local employer, but also being a good
neighbour in the local community and was active in sponsoring and providing
assistance to local groups. The applicant took pride in ensuring his site operated to
the highest standards and had undertaken extensive landscaping and improved site
drainage works around the site. The company continued to grow and develop the
business remaining conscious of the need for resilience in what was an essential
industry, hence the need for the cement silo. The silo would allow the company
greater flexibility in undertaking its streetworks and meant it would be able to use its
own volumetric trucks avoiding using third party concrete plants which regularly did
not work timewise in terms of getting concrete delivered when it was needed — this
would mean the company would be able to undertake quicker and more efficient
works thus minimising the duration of any roadworks. The silo was a simple
structure comparable to agricultural silos and, although it was 10 metres high, it was
a very slim structure with a diameter of only three metres. It sat in the middle of an
extensive yard with various buildings and activities all around and was not
something you would notice as you drove past the site on a day to day basis. In
addition, there were a number of mature trees which were the features in the
landscape that drew your eye, and there was a considerable amount of maturing
landscape which screened the depot and the silo and this would only grow and hide
the depot further.

It was proposed and seconded and, upon being put to the vote, it was

RESOLVED That the application be PERMITTED in accordance with the
Officer recommendation.

20/00182/FUL - 12 Sandown Road, Bishops Cleeve

This application was for the erection of a single storey rear extension and retention
of front porch.

The Planning Officer explained that a Committee determination was required as the
Parish Council had objected on the grounds that the porch was out of keeping with
the dwelling itself and with neighbouring properties. The Parish Council’s concerns
had been noted; however, there were other similar porches along the road and on
the housing estate, and a slightly smaller porch would also fall within permitted
development. In addition, the applicant could have rendered the dwelling without
permission so, overall, the proposal was considered to be of an acceptable size and
design with no harm to the existing street scene.

The Chair indicated that there were no public speakers for this item and the Officer
recommendation was to permit the application. In proposing the Officer
recommendation one of the local Member’s indicated that, whilst the Parish Council
had objected, a similar porch had been constructed three doors down from this
application site and also, around the corner in Hardy Road, alterations involving the
windows being changed and a porch added had been undertaken under permitted
development rights. The other local Member for the area seconded the motion and it
was

RESOLVED That the application be PERMITTED in accordance with the
Officer recommendation.

7



46.14

46.15

46.16

PL.15.12.20

19/00594/FUL - 1 Down Hatherley Lane, Down Hatherley

This application was for a variation of condition 2 (approved plan schedule) of
application 19/00006/FUL for alterations to elevations and floor plans to allow for
provision of a first floor and alterations to fenestration.

The Planning Officer explained that the application related to No. 1 Down
Hatherley Lane which was located along the southern side of the lane in Down
Hatherley. The site comprised a semi-detached two storey dwelling with a pitched
roof and was bound by residential properties to the north, east and south. Currently
to the west of the site lay agricultural land; however, this formed part of the
strategic allocation Al Innsworth and Twigworth in the Joint Core Strategy and was
shown to be housing and related infrastructure in the Joint Core Strategy indicative
site layout proposal map. Planning permission at the site had been granted at the
Planning Committee in April 2019 for the erection of a detached dwelling and
associated works — planning reference 19/00006/FUL — and whilst that permission
had not been implemented it was still extant. The application proposed changes to
the design and scale of the dwelling as approved and had been submitted under
Section 73 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 to vary condition 2 of the
original permission so as to amend the list of approved drawing numbers. The
principal change from the approved scheme was the introduction of first floor
accommaodation to provide two bedrooms and a bathroom and, to facilitate the first
floor accommodation, the ridge height of the eastern gable would increase by 0.9
metres with the depth increasing by 0.5 metres. In addition, two pitched dormer
windows were proposed in replacement of two roof lights on the west facing roof
slope. The overall length and eaves height of the dwelling would remain as
approved. In terms of siting, the dwelling would not be located any closer to the
boundaries. An assessment of the material considerations could be found at Pages
No. 80-82 of the Officer’s report and, as set out in the report, the principle of the
erection of a single dwelling at the site had already been established through the
grant of full planning permission. Officers considered the changes to the design
and scale of the dwelling as approved were acceptable, and accordingly it was
recommended that the planning permission should be granted subject to the
suggested conditions set out at Pages No. 83-85 of the Officer’s report.

The Chair invited an objector to address the Committee. The objector indicated
that he was the owner of the neighbouring property most affected by the
application. The Parish Council had also objected and the property was on land
outside of the Council’s planning strategy; despite all of that the concerns
appeared to be overridden in favour of the developer. The objector was of the view
that this should be a full application rather than an amendment and it should not
have been processed under Section 73 of the Town and Country Planning Act as it
must not be used where there was a material change to the application and
material included impact on neighbouring property. A change from one to two
storeys and removal of the privacy of a neighbouring property were, by definition,
material. He explained that he was objecting to the amendment to two storeys
because a two storey house alongside his bungalow would remove the privacy in
his rear garden and overbear his property by its size and presence. In her
submission supporting the original approval, the Planning Officer had used the fact
that the property was single storey as a supporting factor in making the impact on
the surrounding property acceptable. That reasoning now seemed to have
changed with the only consideration being light rather than overlooking. The length
of the proposed property was 13 metres but, as the plot on Google Earth was
approximately 17.9 metres, there would be a gap to each boundary of around two
metres; this would have a massive impact on The Haven as, from the upper storey,
the whole of The Haven’s garden would be fully visible and the property would
have imposed on it a building site a mere two metres away. The objector was of
the view that the diagrammatic representation was fanciful as it was a congested

8



46.17

PL.15.12.20

plot with three massive conifers on the east boundary line with trunks in the
neighbouring property. It was not apparent whether this was a self-build and this
was important as it should be reflected in the planning conditions. By definition,
self-builds happened in the evening and weekends which would spoil the leisure of
the neighbouring property and could result in an indefinite build period. The
objector asked that the application be rejected because of the unacceptable impact
on his property, the loss of privacy and the right to enjoy that property.

A Member explained why he could not support this application which were for the
same reasons he had been unable to support the original application and had been
well documented at that time. It had been his view, and he remained of that
opinion, that this was piecemeal development of what was a bigger Al strategic
site which should be considered as a whole. Another Member referred to the
concerns raised by the objector in relation to construction times and questioned
whether it was possible to add a condition restricting the times during the day and
weekends that construction could take place. The Planning Officer indicated that
this was something that could be done although it was not general practice in
circumstances such as these in terms of a single plot; someone could build a
garage in their back garden under permitted development rights with no restriction
on construction times and any resulting noise nuisance would be dealt with under
different legislation. Equally, given the close proximity of this development to the
neighbouring property it was possible to add a condition restricting construction
hours. She suggested, and the Member agreed, that the hours 8am — 6pm Monday
to Friday and 8am to 1pm on Saturday were in line with the norm and could be
added to the conditions should the development be permitted. Another Member
referred to the plans for the development and particularly the dormer windows
which appeared to him to look out over open fields. He indicated that the objector
had been very concerned about overlooking and he queried whether this would be
the case. He maintained that if the objector lived at the Haven he could not see
from the plans how this property would be overlooked although he acknowledged
that the development would have an impact on the Haven. The Planning Officer
confirmed the Member’s understanding and drew attention to the site layout plan
which showed where the windows would be in relation to the neighbouring
properties. She confirmed that the objector lived at the Haven and with the aid of
the plan she demonstrated that the dormer windows of the development would
look out to the west overlooking the garden of the proposed development whilst the
Haven was situated to the south of the development. There were two roof lights
proposed on the rear elevation to the east and to prevent any overlooking of the
property known as Applegarth, a condition was proposed to secure obscure
glazing with limited opening. There were no windows on the south elevation that
would overlook the Haven although potentially the dormer windows could look over
the rear garden of that property but that type of linear positioning was not
uncommon for residential development. The Member reminded the Committee that
a permission for development on this site already existed and he proposed that the
application be permitted in accordance with the Officer recommendation. The
proposal was seconded. A discussion took place on the need to ensure that no
further openings would be permitted under permitted development rights on the
east elevation roof of the development in order to protect the amenity of Applegarth
and the Planning Officer confirmed an additional condition to be added which
would restrict such permitted development rights beyond the proposed two roof
lights on the east elevation only.



46.18

46.19

PL.15.12.20

During the discussion which ensued, a Member stated that whilst, she appreciated
that a permission had already been granted for development on this plot, she was
of the view that the changes to the original plans which were approved were
substantial and she had a great deal of sympathy with the objector and the
occupants of the surrounding houses. These houses were not at this point in time
part of a linear development and neither did they want them to be; the addition of
another floor to this development would greatly impact upon their lives and for
these reasons she could not support this development. A Member referred to the
debate that had taken place earlier concerning the addition of a condition
restricting the hours of construction and sought clarification as to whether this was
feasible bearing in mind the relaxation of construction hours put in place by the
government in response to COVID-19 as he was aware that this had happened in
respect of the development taking place at Innsworth. The Development Manager
confirmed that there was now an application process in place which developers
could go through which allowed for the loosening of construction times imposed by
planning conditions. Nevertheless, if the Committee felt that it was necessary to
put a condition on this development restricting construction times for the reasons
explained earlier he felt that any loosening of such a condition would be resisted.
However, he was mindful of the fact that a planning permission already existed on
this plot without such a condition and therefore he questioned whether it would be
reasonable to impose such a restriction for these revised proposals. In his view it
was a moot point as to whether the changes were substantial in their entirety but,
in terms of the construction phase, it was probably not substantially different in
terms of the amount of time it would take to construct the dwelling so whilst it was
possible to add a condition restricting construction times he questioned whether it
would be reasonable in the absence of a restriction on the existing planning
permission. The Member who had suggested the construction hours restriction
indicated that she had been going to check whether the motion that had been
proposed and seconded included the restriction on construction; she was of the
view that as the original approved proposal was single storey and the application
now in front of the Committee was two storey there would be considerable
additional construction works resulting from the addition of a first floor and a
condition to cover this should be added if at all possible. Another Member referred
to the debate on removing permitted development rights for any further openings
on the east elevation of the development to protect the amenity rights of
Applegarth and queried whether permitted development rights should be removed
for any openings on the south side of the development to protect the amenity rights
of the Haven. The Development Manager stated that this was a matter for
Members judgement should they wish to see a restriction in permitted development
rights for the east and south elevations in respect of openings this was certainly
something which could be included if Members considered this to be reasonable.
The proposer and seconder indicated that they were happy to include within their
motion the addition of conditions on restricted construction hours and the removal
of permitted development rights for any openings on the south elevation of the
dwelling and no further openings on the east elevation.

Upon being put to the vote, it was

RESOLVED That, subject to the addition of a condition restricting
construction times to 8am to 6pm Monday to Friday and 8am to
1pm on Saturday and the removal of permitted development
rights for any openings on the south elevation and any
additional openings on the east elevation, the application be
PERMITTED in accordance with the Officer recommendation.

10



46.20

46.21

46.22

PL.15.12.20

20/00598/FUL - Land Adjacent Springbank, Old Road, Southam

This application was for the proposed erection of a single dwelling, associated
parking and landscaping.

The Planning Officer explained that the application related to a parcel of land
adjacent to the property known as Springbank which was located along the eastern
side of Old Road in Southam. The site comprised of an area of sloping lawn which
currently formed the side garden of the host dwelling. The site was bound by
residential properties to the north and south and by Cleeve Hill Road to the east
beyond the existing fence and hedge. The site was located within the Green Belt
and the Cotswolds Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty. The application had been
submitted in full and sought permission for the construction of a detached dwelling
and associated parking and landscaping. The proposed dwelling would be located
centrally on the plot in alignment with the host dwelling. The dwelling would appear
two storey in height from the front elevation, though, due to the sloped nature of the
site, the accommodation would be arranged over three floors. Planning permission
had been granted in April 2020 for the erection of a single storey front extension and
the construction of new dormer windows and roof lights to the host dwelling,
Springbank. Those works had not yet commenced but the applicant intended to
construct the new dwelling and carry out the approved extensions/alterations to
Springbank at the same time therefore the new dwelling had been designed so as to
reflect and compliment the scale, appearance and character of the host dwelling
through the extensions and alterations. An assessment of the material
considerations could be found on Pages 94 - 101 of the Officer’s report. As set out
in the report, Officers had identified no adverse impact of granting planning
permission, therefore, in accordance with Paragraph 11 of the National Planning
Policy Framework, the presumption in favour of sustainable development indicated
that planning permission be granted. As detailed in the additional representations
sheet, since writing the Committee report County Highways had reviewed the
revised site layout plan which demonstrated the proposed visibility splays and had
confirmed that they had no objections subject to conditions. On this basis the
recommendation for delegated permit had been changed to permit with three
additional conditions and informative notes as recommended by County Highways.
The additional conditions and notes were listed in the additional representations
sheet.

The Chair invited an objector to address the Committee. He advised that the
photographs in the presentation which accompanied the Officer’s report clearly
showed the windows of Oaklands overlooking the site and demonstrated the loss of
light that his family home would suffer from the proposed new dwelling. The
proposal was to cram a new home into one end of the Springbank site, 10 metres
from the windows serving Oaklands’ primary living spaces — which was only 5-6
metres from the boundary. The section plan which accompanied the application,
showed a flat level section but this was in fact not the case. As per the objector’'s
letter of 7 October, the section drawing did not accurately represent the relationship
between the dwellings, in particular the 25 degree line, and the impact on the living
conditions and amenity afforded by Oaklands. This was due to the sloping nature of
the site and the non-uniform ground floor levels of Oaklands. Nor did the plan reflect
that site levels on the Oaklands/Dipping Well boundary differed by nearly four
metres across the east-west axis which could be clearly seen in the Planning
Officer’s presentation. The plans for the proposed dwelling therefore did not reflect
the overbearing awareness of the proposed building — as viewed from the garden
and primary living spaces of Oaklands — which would result in the enjoyment of his
home and garden being unacceptably impaired. As could be seen clearly from the
plans, the first floor windows of Oaklands would overlook the garden in the
proposed dwelling, and the proposed solution of subdividing the garden to provide a
‘private amenity space’ both acknowledged the issue and was a nonsense as it

11



46.23

46.24

PL.15.12.20

would be unreasonable not to expect future occupiers to seek to remove. Again, the
distance to the proposed dwelling was only 10 metres and this seemed contrary to
the Council’s own policy (SWDP21) which required that new developments should
provide an adequate level of privacy. In addition, the rear windows of the proposed
dwelling would overlook the south-east corner of Oaklands’ private garden leading
to a loss of privacy in the family’s main outdoor space. The proposed development
was within designated Green Belt and its right-angle orientation to Oaklands and
Dipping Well, and proximity to Oaklands, as well as its cramped relationship to the
existing dwellings meant that it was clearly not well-related to its neighbours and nor
was it consistent with the spacious appearance of the surrounding area. The Parish
Council objection used the term ‘overdevelopment’ and the objector felt this was an
appropriate term in this case. The objector noted that Southam seemed to lack the
basic facilities which would meet the definition of a village or service village as per
the Joint Core Strategy and therefore it did not seem justifiable that the proposal
should be viewed as ‘infilling in villages’ and the objector requested that the
Committee did not grant permission to the proposal.

The Chair invited the applicant’s agent to address the Committee. He explained that
the Officer’'s report clearly set out that the principle of development in the location
was considered acceptable in planning policy terms as the proposal represented
infilling within a village as set out in Policy SD10 of the Joint Core Strategy. There
was no doubt that the application was proposed on an underdeveloped plot which
was well related to the existing built development. The application site was bound
by residential development to the north, south and west and, although it was within
the Green Belt, Paragraph 145 of the National Planning Policy Framework
supported limited infilling in villages. Southam was definitely a village which even
had its own village hall that benefited the community. Neighbouring concerns had
been raised in relation to the potential impact on privacy of garden space of the new
dwelling with potential overlooking from the Oaklands property so minor revisions
had been made to include a fence and gate to the rear garden of the new house to
reduce any perceived impact on privacy and to ensure there were no direct views
into the private space by the rear patio doors. The objectors had raised further
concerns that the occupants of the new house could choose to remove the fence
but it was felt that someone wanting to impact on their own privacy in that way was
nonsensical. The section drawing disproved the concerns regarding the perceived
overbearing impact on Oaklands and demonstrated that the gable wall would only
appear the same as that of a single storey dwelling when viewed from Oaklands.
Furthermore, the gable wall was some 12 metres away from the rear windows of
Oaklands which was very common place in housing developments. Although it was
accepted that there would be some minor overshadowing of the extremities of the
neighbours gardens at particular times of the day, that harm would not unduly affect
the occupiers of the neighbouring properties. Overall, the supporter believed that
the scheme proposals were in accordance with both the National Planning Policy
Framework and local planning policy and it constituted a sustainable form of
development and should therefore be supported and the Officer’'s recommendation
for approval endorsed.

A Member indicated that looking at the plans for the lower ground floor it appeared
to show that the only windows were to the lounge and bedroom and she wished to
check that this was correct as it meant that there was a plant store utility room,
bathroom and main hallway without any natural light coming through. The Planning
Officer confirmed that the Member’s interpretation of the plans was correct and
explained that it was to do with the ground levels and in particular the lower ground
level to the rear being dug into the ground so that there was no natural light. The
Member then referred to the fact that on the previous application for development
on this site permitted development rights had been removed for additional windows
and whilst she appreciated this was not relevant to the lower ground level it was
relevant to the upper ground floor and first floor particularly as the objector was

12



46.25

46.26

46.27

PL.15.12.20

concerned about the loss of privacy. She questioned whether it was possible to
remove permitted development rights for windows on the north elevation. The
Planning Officer stated that although no openings were shown on the revised plans
for the north elevation it would be possible to include the removal of permitted
development rights for openings on the north elevation should permission for the
development be granted. It was proposed that the application be permitted with the
addition of the conditions suggested by County Highways and the removal of
permitted development rights for openings on the north elevation and, upon being
put to the vote, it was

RESOLVED That, subject to the addition of the conditions suggested by
County Highways and the removal of permitted development
rights for openings on the north elevation, the application be
PERMITTED in accordance with the Officer report.

Tree Preservation Order 404 - Land Adjacent 25 Paynes Pitch

The Committee was asked to confirm Tree Preservation Order 404 without
modification.

The Tree Officer explained that the proposal related to an emergency Tree
Preservation Order that was served to protect a row of trees between 25 Paynes
Pitch and Dunstan Glen. The emergency Tree Preservation Order was served due
to the felling of nearly all the mature trees within 25 Paynes Pitch and subsequent
concerns that the row of trees in question may also be under threat of being
removed. The trees were clearly visible to the public and had high amenity value
that contributed to the street scene. A planning application had since been received
which showed a proposed entrance going through the row of protected trees and
confirmation of the Order would ensure that the trees were a material consideration
throughout the planning application process. For these reasons it was
recommended that the Tree Preservation Order 404 be confirmed without
modification.

The Chair invited an objector to address the Committee. The objector, who was a
Chartered Arboriculturist and a Professional Member of the Arboricultural
Association, felt that the decision of whether to confirm the Tree Preservation Order
was completely separate from any planning application issues relating to the
adjacent land and the key issue at stake was whether each of the trees was really
worthy of a Tree Preservation Order. He believed that the trees, in most cases,
were not good enough and provided examples that there was an ash tree that had
been severely lopped and topped in the past so that it was now misshapen and, in
addition, it had been inspected earlier in the year and had shown symptoms of ash-
dieback disease which was likely to prove fatal; there was a large leyland cypress
tree which was quite clearly outgrowing its available space and was going to get a
lot bigger relatively quickly; and there were young self-set sycamore and ash trees
which had grown up close to one another and were relatively tall and thin which only
had short-term viability. In his professional opinion, there was only one tree that just
might merit a Tree Preservation Order and that was a medium sized sycamore that
had previously been topped and whose three main limbs were stitched together by
an old and taut system of supporting cables. The objector asked that Members be
mindful of several considerations: whether a Tree Preservation Order was
necessary at all, especially given that the trees were all outside of the curtilage of 25
Paynes Pitch so were not under any immediate threat, and, even though there was
a planning application pending determination, the Council could achieve effective
tree retention through the normal planning processes either via collaboration or
conditions; also, whether it would be reasonable to refuse a future Tree
Preservation Order application to fell some of those low quality trees and whether
such a decision could be justified to the Planning Inspectorate. He asked Members

13



46.28

46.29

PL.15.12.20

to either not confirm the Tree Preservation Order or to give serious consideration to
ensuring that it was confirmed with modifications so that it only applied to the trees
that were of good enough quality.

The Chair invited a supporter to address the meeting. The supporter began by
endorsing the report of the Tree Officer which represented the thoughts of residents
in a clear and concise manner. He went on to advise that he was addressing the
Committee as a spokesperson for the residents of Dunstan Glen, Churchdown, the
wider village community and the two Tree Wardens who all wished to see the
retention of the Tree Preservation Order. The area of the Tree Preservation Order
formed the boundary of the adjacent property of 25 Paynes Pitch known as Dunstan
Lodge. In early July, developers had moved onto the Dunstan Lodge curtilage and
felled all the trees which were not in a Conservation Area and were without Tree
Preservation Order status. Contact was made with Tewkesbury Borough Council
and within a week Tree Preservation Order 404 was placed upon the trees and
hedgerow area — it was established because of the perceived risk of the trees being
felled and the hedgerow being ‘grubbed out’ by developers. Within another week an
objection was placed on the Order by the developers of Dunstan Lodge. In early
November, the developers applied for full residential planning permission for
Dunstan Lodge. In documents contained within the planning submission, the
developers stated that the southern boundary fence between Dunstan Lodge and
Dunstan Glen would be totally removed and that the land containing Tree
Preservation Order 404 be incorporated within their development plans. In their
submissions, the perceived risk had now become reality and it stated that the
cypress and ash trees would be felled and 70% of the hedgerow grubbed out. The
area of land serving Tree Preservation Order 404 had been managed by the
residents of Dunstan Glen since 1985. The objector referred to the Secretary of
State’s document ‘Tree Preservation Order Applications’ which stated that “in the
Secretary of State’s view, Tree Preservation Orders should be used to protect
selected trees and woodlands if their removal would have a significant impact on the
local environment and its enjoyment by the public. The trees, or at least part of
them, should therefore normally be visible from a public place, such as a road or
footpath. The benefit may be present or future; trees may be worthy of preservation
for their intrinsic beauty or for their contribution to the landscape or because they
served to screen an eyesore or future development. Other factors, such as
importance as a wildlife habitat, may be taken into account”. His view was that Tree
Preservation Order 404 met all of those criteria and as such the existing Order
should be retained until a proper planning application could be debated, voted upon
and approved to ensure the long term survival of the vast majority of the existing
trees and that the site was ultimately developed responsibly.

In proposing the Officer recommendation, a local Member indicated that, whilst the
trees may not look particularly attractive to the outside world, they were very
important to the residents of Churchdown, they had been there for a number of
years and represented a landscape which the community wished to keep before it
was taken away by developers. The Development Manager indicated that it had just
been brought to his attention that a minor modification to the Order would be
required. He indicated that it was a technical matter required by the legislation in
that the Order needed to specify the number of trees of each species when it was a
group Tree Preservation Order as was the case in this instance. He therefore
suggested a slight change to the recommendation to confirm Tree Preservation
Order 404 with modification to allow the Order to be updated to take account of this
legislative requirement, but this would not change the overall effect of the
recommendation. The proposer of the motion indicated that she was happy to
accommaodate this change within her proposal and this was seconded. The
seconder of the motion went on to refer to instances within his own ward where he
believed that hedgerow and trees subject to Tree Preservation Orders had been
damaged deliberately by developers so that they could be removed; he questioned

14



PL.15.12.20

how confident Officers were that this would not happen in this instance. The
Development Manager stated that he was as confident as he ever could be in these
situations; a Tree Preservation Order was a serious matter and it was an offence to
wilfully undertake works to destroy trees that were subject to an Order and he
hoped that a developer would do nothing to upset this. In this particular instance the
land was not within the control of the developer who had submitted the neighbouring
planning application so, again, he hoped that this would provide some assurance to
Members. Another Member questioned what the objector had said in relation to one
of the trees subject to the Tree Preservation Order being a leylandii tree as he
understood that such species could not be the subject of a Tree Preservation Order
and if it was he could not understand why the Council would wish to preserve one of
these trees. The Tree Officer explained that the emergency Tree Preservation Order
had been placed on the whole group of trees because of the visual amenity
provided by the group of trees as a whole. Another Member indicated in a similar
vein that the objector had referred to the group of trees including Ash Trees and had
suggested that they were showing symptoms of Ash-Dieback disease; he had had
such trees on his land bordering the A46 and had been asked to remove them for
safety reasons. On this basis he was concerned that the Committee was being
asked to preserve a group of trees, that included diseased trees amongst them,
which were not worthy of retention. The Development Manager indicated that, in
terms of the point made about the leylandii, it was his view that as an individual tree
and species it would not normally be protected but where it formed part of a group
that had value as a group then it would be appropriate to do so. In terms of trees
showing symptoms of Ash-Dieback the Development Manager was not aware of
any particular trees being at risk at this particular time but should any trees reach
the position that they presented a danger the Tree Preservation legislation allowed
for works to be carried out to make them safe and should it be necessary to take
them down to achieve this then again this was covered by the legislation without
prejudice to the owner of the trees. Another Member expressed concern about
preserving a group of trees that included leylandii as they were known to grow
extremely quickly and to a great height. On this basis it was proposed that this item
be deferred to allow the Committee to have a good look at what trees were included
in the group as the Committee papers simply referred to a group of trees. The
Committee had been told by an expert, who had detailed his qualification, that many
of the trees in this group were not worth preserving and he wondered whether the
Tree Preservation Order system was being used inappropriately to place barriers in
the path of the property developer and manoeuvre the process in an unacceptable
manner. The proposal to defer this application was seconded. At the invitation of the
Development Manager the Tree Officer explained the implications of deferring the
confirmation of the Order in that a Tree Preservation Order once made had to be
confirmed within six months and if the Order was not confirmed at today’s meeting
then it ran out on 17 January 2021 and after that date the trees would no longer be
protected. The proposer of the deferral motion expressed concerns about this
matter not having been brought before the Committee earlier rather than being left
until the eleventh hour and putting pressure on the Committee to make a decision.
The Development Manager stressed that it was not the intention to put pressure on
the Committee to make a decision but just to set out the facts and advise Members
of what the implications of a deferral might be; the Committee was at liberty to make
whatever decision it so wished but it needed to do so being aware of all of the facts
and implications. The Chair sought to clarify the position in relation to his
understanding that the confirmation was merely pending an application when the
applicant could apply to remove some of the trees as part of the application and this
was simply a mechanism to ensure that the whole group of trees were protected
pending consideration of a planning application which he felt was a sensible thing to
do. The Tree Officer clarified that a Tree Preservation Order did not prevent
planning permission being granted but the local planning authority considered the
risk to protected trees when deciding upon planning applications. Once detailed

15



46.30

PL.47

47.1

47.2

PL.15.12.20

planning consent was granted felling which was directly required to enable the
development to go ahead may then be carried out. The emergency Tree
Preservation Order was put in place because some felling had already taken place,
confirmation of the Tree Preservation Order would mean that the trees would be a
material consideration when the planning application was considered and in the
meantime would afford the trees some protection. The proposer of the motion to
defer indicated that he was more concerned about abuse of the Tree Preservation
Order system by trying to protect trees, which an arboriculturist expert had stated
were not worthy of protection, in order to achieve gains in some other direction. The
Legal Advisor addressed the point about abuse of the system quoting from
government guidance in relation to group trees protection which explicitly provided
that “the group category should be used to protect groups of trees where the
individual category would not be appropriate and the group’s overall impact and
quality merits the protection”. Therefore the fact that there were particular trees that
in themselves would not merit an individual Tree Preservation Order meant that this
group way of protecting the trees was the legitimate way to deal with this matter.
Should the trees be removed because they do not have any protection then they
would not be a material consideration in the planning process as they would simply
no longer be there. During the debate on the motion for deferral, one of the local
Churchdown Member’s felt that it would be useful to give the Committee some
insight into the setting of Dunstan Lodge which was a period property that was
being demolished; all of the greenery on the site was well established albeit that it
incorporated some less worthy trees they were part of the visual amenity as a
whole. She stressed that the impact that these trees had on the area was absolutely
priceless; Churchdown was a rural environment that was rapidly losing its rural
nature and every effort should be made to preserve as much greenery and trees as
possible especially in the light of the climate emergency situation. Whilst some
people may consider the trees to be worthless to the residents of Churchdown they
were a massive asset which should be protected. The proposer of the Motion to
defer the confirmation of the Tree Preservation Order indicated that, in light of the
advice of the Legal Adviser that this was a legitimate process to protect a group of
trees regardless of what they are, he wished to withdraw his motion.

Accordingly, it was

RESOLVED That Tree Preservation Order 404 be CONFIRMED with
modification to deal with the technical matters that had been
raised by the Development Manager.

CURRENT APPEALS AND APPEAL DECISIONS UPDATE

Attention was drawn to the current appeals and appeal decisions update, circulated
at Pages N0.109-119. Members were asked to consider the current planning and
enforcement appeals received and the Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local
Government appeal decisions issued.

A Member reminded the Committee that he had previously asked to be notified of
any appeals taking place online and to be provided with a link in order to observe
the proceedings. To date this had not happened and he sought assurance that it
would happen in the future. The Development Manager apologised that the request
to notify Members of when appeals were taking place had not happened in respect
of the recent Gotherington appeal. He assured Members that a process would be in
place for the Coombe Hill Appeal due to take place on the 19 January 2021. In
response to a further question the Development Manager stated that all of the
documentation on the Gotherington appeal was available on the planning public
access system.

16



PL.15.12.20

47.3 After consideration of the appeals report, it was
RESOLVED That the current appeals and appeal decisions update be
NOTED.

The meeting closed at 12:15 pm

17



PL.15.12.20

Agenda 5A
Planning Committee

ADDITIONAL REPRESENTATIONS SHEET

Date: 15th December 2020

The following is a list of the additional representations received since the Planning Committee Agenda
was published and includes background papers received up to and including the Monday before the
meeting.

A general indication of the content is given but it may be necessary to elaborate at the meeting.

Item
No
5b TPO 404

25 Paynes Pitch, Churchdown

Late representation has been submitted by the objector. An addendum to the
previously submitted TPO objection which | have responded to each point made as
below:

1.Many of the representations in support of the TPO that are listed in the Officer Report
are not specifically relevant to the key issue being put before the Committee. This is
whether or not all the trees in question are good enough in terms of quality and remaining
life expectancy to merit protection in the interests of public visual amenity - as a ‘group’.

Officer response — The majority of the representations received mention the visual
amenity the trees have on the area. The council have received nearly 50
representations in support of the TPO which would indicate that the trees have a
public amenity value. The trees do not have to be of the highest quality and have
scored fair within the Tree Evaluation Method. Their health is satisfactory and there
is no reason why they cannot be retained. Being defined as ‘fair’ does not preclude
a Tree Preservation Order being made on a tree(s).

2. The Officer Report only responds to some aspects of the Objection Report (attached for
further information). It does not fully explain the other aspects of the objection to the
Committee. For example, the alternative option of confirming the TPO in a modified form
to omit poor quality and unsustainable trees is simply not acknowledged as a possibility.

Officer response — A response of the key objection reasons was summarised in the
Officers report to committee under Section 3.0 Analysis.

The key reasons that were stated in 6.2 Conclusion of the Objectors report (extract
copied below) were:

6.2.1 In my opinion it is not expedient in the interests of public visual amenity for the TPO
to have been served. This is for the following key reasons:

» The larger, more prominent trees are generally of impaired structural

form and appearance

» The larger trees can only be retained in the longer term by means of

repeated and disproportionately expensive management.

* One larger ash tree will progressively decline due to effects of ash

dieback disease.

* All the trees are located outside 25 Paynes Patch and are therefore

not under threat. As such, the TPO is not expedient.

With regards to the latter in point 2, to confirm the order with modification will result
in removing some of the trees from the Order. If the trees are removed the visual
amenity value of this group as a whole will be impacted.

18



PL.15.12.20

3. The Officer Report states that the trees have “high visual amenity”. However, it then
contradicts itself somewhat by stating that a TEMPO (Tree Evaluation Method for
Preservation Orders) assessment only indicates that the TPO might only be ‘defensible’.
This clearly indicates that the trees only have ‘low/moderate’ visual amenity value at best.

Officer response: Tree Evaluation Method for Preservation Orders (TEMPO) is a
recognised method for evaluating trees for a TPO. The assessment resulted in a
decision that the TPO was defensible this does not mean that the trees are of low
visual amenity value. Particularly as the group of trees consists of large, medium
and small trees clearly visible to the public. Therefore, it was expedient to make the
TPO.

4. Overall, it is not a reasonably proportionate response to protect the trees as a ‘group’
TPO. This is because many of the trees are low quality with short useful life expectancies.
On this basis, Members may wish to consider whether any future TPO application to fell
individual trees within the group could be reasonably refused by the Council? Could any
such decision be robustly and credibly defended as an appeal to the Planning
Inspectorate?

Officer response: Future applications to fell trees subject to this TPO will be
considered on their own merits and reasoning and this has no relevance to the
confirming of the TPO.

Recommendations to the Committee

5. It is respectfully requested that the TPO is not confirmed for the reasons given in the
original Objection Report. OR

6. If Members are minded to confirm the TPO, please can they ensure that only suitable
individual trees are protected? Such trees would have good individual public visual
amenity value and a realistic useful life expectancy of at least 20 years (this equates to
‘moderate quality’ in terms of British Standards) are protected? This would mean that the
TPO would still be confirmed but subject to modifications.

Officer response: To confirm the order with modification will result in removing
some of the trees from the Order. If the trees are removed the visual amenity value
of this group as a whole will be impacted

One further letter of support for the TPO has also been received.

The letter mentions that the trees are a natural division and provides a natural wildlife area
for birds and hedgehogs and for these environmental reasons the trees should not be
removed

5f

20/00598/FUL

Land Adjacent Springbank, Old Road, Southam, Cheltenham, Gloucestershire, GL52
3NN

Officer Update
Access and Highway Safety

Since writing the committee report County Highways have reviewed the revised site layout
plan, drawing no.101 Rev B, which demonstrates the proposed visibility splays. They have
raised no objections to the proposal subject to recommended conditions.

In terms of the visibility, to ensure suitable visibility between exiting vehicles from the
widened site access, the existing boundary hedge which runs to the north of the site
access to the northern boundary with the adjoining property, The Dipping Well, needs to
be removed and replanted behind the site boundary, as defined by the red line on the
submitted location plan. These works can be secured via condition.

19




PL.15.12.20

Revised Recommendation

Following receipt of the comments from County Highways as no highway objection has
been raised the recommendation for the application is now PERMIT.

Ecology

Further to the information set out in paragraphs 7.39 to 7.41 of the committee report (found
on page 100 of the agenda), following further discussion with an officer from NatureSpace,
whilst noting the application site is located in a 'Red Zone' for Great Crested Newts (GCN)
as identified by the NatureSpace Impact Risk Maps, given the site consists of an existing
garden, is entirely surrounded by existing houses, gardens and roads and the nearest
suitable ponds are more than 250 metres away, officers consider the risk of GCN's being
present on the site is low and therefore no further information is required from the applicant
in this case. In light of this, the second informative note recommended on page 103 of the
agenda, has been revised to reflect this change:

Under the Conservation of Habitats and Species Regulations 2017 (as amended) and the
Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 (as amended), it is an offence to: deliberately capture,
disturb, injure or kill great crested newts; damage or destroy a breeding or resting place; or
deliberately obstruct access to a resting or sheltering place without a licence. Planning
consent for a development does not provide a defence against prosecution under these
acts. Tewkesbury Borough Council operates a District Licence (DL) scheme for great
crested newts (GCN). The DL remains an option should you wish to insure against the risk
of finding GCN on site. The application site is located in a 'Red Zone' for GCN as
identified by the NatureSpace Impact Risk Maps. Red zones are characterised as highly
suitable habitat - the most important areas for GCN. In this case the risk of encountering
GCN on site is considered to be low because of the existing habitats and surrounding
development. However, if a GCN is found on site, works would have to stop whilst a
licence is sought (either by opting into the Council's District Licence or by seeking a
standard site-based licence).

Condition Update

Additional conditions

County Highways have recommended the following conditions and informative note:

1. Notwithstanding the visibility splay details as shown on drawing no. 101 Rev B the
development shall not begin until the boundary hedge north of the site access has been
removed and replanted behind the site boundary, as defined by the red line on the location
plan, between the site access and northern site boundary. Nothing shall thereafter be
planted, erected and/or allowed to grow/stand 0.6m above the adjacent carriageway level
on land 2.4m inside the site access centreline from the nearside carriageway edge north to
the nearside carriageway edge adjacent to the northern boundary of the site.

Reason: In the interests of providing and maintaining visibility for highway safety.

2. The dwelling hereby permitted shall not be first occupied until the electric vehicle
charging point, cycle parking, car parking and turning space have been provided as shown
on drawing no. 101 Rev B. The cycle parking, car parking and turning space shall be
maintained for those purposes for the duration of the development thereafter. The charging
point shall comply with BS EN 62196 Mode 3 or 4 charging and BS EN 61851 and shall be
retained for the lifetime of the development unless it needs to be replaced in which case
the replacement charging point shall be of the same specification or a higher specification
in terms of charging performance.

Reason: To ensure the provision and availability of adequate cycle and car parking and
suitable electric vehicle charging.

3. Prior to the occupation of the dwelling hereby permitted, the widened vehicular access
shall include drainage measures to prevent surface water run-off onto the highway.

20



PL.15.12.20

Reason: In the interest of highway safety and minimising damage or disruption to the
highway and road users.

Informative Note

The Local Highway Authority has no objection to the development subject to the applicant
obtaining a section 184 licence. The construction of a altered access appears to require
the extension of a verge crossing from the carriageway under the Highways Act 1980 -
Section 184 and the Applicant would therefore be required to obtain the permission of
Gloucestershire Highways on 08000 514 514 or highways@gloucestershire.gov.uk before
commencing any works on the highway.

The above conditions and informative note are recommended in addition to the
conditions/notes detailed on pages 101-103 of the agenda.

21



Agenda Item 5a

TEWKESBURY BOROUGH COUNCIL — DEVELOPMENT CONTROL

Committee: Planning
Date: 19 January 2021
Site Location: 51 Sandycroft Road
Churchdown
Gloucester
Gloucestershire
GL3 1JQ
Application No: 20/00446/FUL
Ward: Churchdown St Johns
Parish: Churchdown
Proposal: Erection of a single storey side and rear extensions
Report by: Mrs Sarah Barnes
Appendices: Site location plan
Block plan
Elevations
Floor plans

Recommendation: | Permit

1.0 SITE DESCRIPTION AND PROPOSAL

1.1. The application site relates to 51 Sandycroft Road, a detached bungalow located on a
housing estate in Churchdown (site plan attached).

1.2. The proposal is for a single storey side and rear extensions. The proposal would create an
additional bedroom, utility room, garden room and two ensuites. Revised plans were
submitted on 4 November 2020 changing the design of the rear extensions to have flat roofs
with lanterns rather than pitched roofs to reduce the impact on the neighbouring dwellings
(plans attached).

1.3. A Committee determination is required as the Parish Council is objecting to the proposal on
the grounds of overdevelopment and the detrimental effect on the visual amenity of this area
and existing neighbours.

2.0  RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY

2.1. Thereis no recent/ relevant planning history.

22



3.0

3.1

3.2.

3.3.

3.4.

3.5.

3.6.

3.7.

3.8.

4.0

4.1.

4.2.

5.0

5.1.

5.2.

6.0

6.1.

6.2.

RELEVANT POLICY

The following planning guidance and policies are relevant to the consideration of this
application:

National guidance

National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) and the National Planning Practice Guidance
(NPPG).

Gloucester, Cheltenham and Tewkesbury Joint Core Strategy (JCS) - Adopted 11
December 2017

Policy SD4 (Designh Requirements).
Policy SD14 (Health and Environmental Quality).

Tewkesbury Borough Local Plan to 2011 - March 2006 (TBLP)
Policy HOU8 (Domestic Extensions).

Tewkesbury Borough Plan 2011-2031 Pre-Submission Version (October 2019)
Policy RES10 (Alteration and Extension of Existing Dwellings).

Human Rights Act 1998 - Article 8 (Right to Respect for Private and Family Life).
The First Protocol, Article 1 (Protection of Property).
CONSULTATIONS

Parish Council — original plans — objects - the size of the proposed extension is detrimental to
the street scene and is out of character to the other properties in this location.

Parish Council — revised plans — objects on grounds of overdevelopment and the detrimental
effect on the visual amenity of this area and existing neighbours.

PUBLICITY AND REPRESENTATIONS

The application has been publicised through the posting of a site notice for a period of 21
days.

No letters of objection have been received from any local residents.
POLICY CONTEXT

Section 38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 requires that proposals be
determined in accordance with the development plan unless material considerations indicate
otherwise. Section 70(2) of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 provides that the Local
Planning Authority shall have regard to the provisions of the Development Plan, so far as
material to the application, and to any other material considerations.

The Development Plan currently comprises the Joint Core Strategy (JCS) (2017), saved

policies of the Tewkesbury Borough Local Plan to 2011 (March 2006) (TBLP), and a number
of 'made' Neighbourhood Development Plans.

23



6.3.

6.4.

7.0

7.1.

7.2.

7.3.

7.4.

7.5.

The Pre-Submission Tewkesbury Borough Plan was submitted to the Secretary of State for
Housing, Communities and Local Government on 18 May 2020 for examination. On the
basis of the stage of preparation it has reached, it is considered that the plan can be afforded
at least moderate weight. However, the weight to be attributed to individual policies will be
subject to the extent to which there are unresolved objections (the less significant the
unresolved objections, the greater the weight that may be given) and their degree of
consistency with the NPPF (the closer the policies to those in the NPPF the greater the
weight that may be given).

The relevant policies are set out in the appropriate sections of this report.
ANALYSIS

Design and Visual Amenity

JCS Policy SD4 of the Joint Core Strategy sets out requirements for high quality design while
Local Plan Policy HOUS8 provides that development must respect the character, scale and
proportion of the existing dwelling and the surrounding development.

The Parish Council has raised objections on the grounds of overdevelopment of the site and
the detrimental effect on the visual amenity of the area. The Parish Council’'s concerns are
noted, however, in terms of overdevelopment there would be adequate garden area free from
extensions / additions and there is no planning history for any previous extensions other than
a rear conservatory constructed under permitted development. With regards to visual
amenity, the proposed extensions would be of a suitable size / design and constructed from
matching materials. There are other similar sized extensions on this estate.

Effect on the Living Conditions of Neighbouring Dwellings

Policy SD14 of the JCS requires that new development must cause no harm to local amenity
including the amenity of neighbouring occupants. Local Plan Policy HOUS8 provides that
extensions to existing dwellings should not have an unacceptable impact on adjacent
property and residential amenity. In this regard, Policy 5.1 states that the amenities of
neighbouring residential occupiers should not be unduly affected by overlooking, loss of light,
over-dominance or disturbance.

Other material policy considerations include national planning guidance contained within the
National Planning Policy Framework 2018 and the emerging Tewkesbury Borough Local
Plan (Preferred Options Consultation) 2011-2031.

The Parish Council has raised concerns about the impact of the proposal on neighbouring
dwellings. The Parish Council’s concerns have been considered and the impact of the
proposal (as revised) upon neighbouring properties has been carefully assessed. This is a
detached bungalow located on the end of a row. There are dwellings to the rear of the site
about 11 metres away and one dwelling to the side (no 53), however, given that the rear
extensions would be single storey with a flat roof there would not be an adverse impact.
Overall, it is considered that there would not be an undue impact upon the neighbour’s
residential amenity in accordance with Policy HOUS of the Local Plan and Policy SD14 of the
JCS.

24



8.0 CONCLUSION AND RECOMMENDATION

8.1. Itis considered that the proposal as revised would not be harmful to the appearance of the
existing dwelling nor the surrounding area and it would not result in an unacceptable loss of
residential amenity to neighbouring dwellings. The proposal would also be of an acceptable
size and design. It would therefore accord with relevant policies as outlined above.
Therefore, it is recommended the application be permitted.

CONDITIONS:

1. The works hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of five years from the date of
this consent.

Reason: Required to be imposed by Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 as
amended by Section 51 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004.

2. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the following
approved documents:

- Revised plans dated 4 November 2020 and site plan / block plan dated 25 May 2020 except
where these may be modified by any other conditions attached to this permission.

Reason: To ensure that the development is carried out in accordance with the approved plans.

3. The materials to be used in the construction of the external surfaces of the proposed
development shall match those used in the existing dwelling.

Reason: To ensure that the proposed development is in keeping with the existing dwelling.

INFORMATIVES:

1. In accordance with the requirements of the NPPF the Local Planning Authority has sought to
determine the application in a positive and proactive manner by offering pre-application advice,
publishing guidance to assist the applicant, and publishing to the Council's website relevant

information received during the consideration of the application thus enabling the applicant to be
kept informed as to how the case was proceeding.

25



G

JOANNA JAMES

,

0OS MasterMap 1250/2500/10000 scale
Friday, May 15, 2020, ID: 1J-00876512

www.joanna-james.com

Data

gl

1:1250 scale print at A4, Centre: 387117 E, 221387 N
@Crown Copyright Ordnance Survey. Licence no. 100059809

26



WgOJ 13

g
IS
10 12 g

’

22!420"\

21 3‘4&“

www.joanna-james.com

OS MasterMap 1250/2500/10000 scale
Friday, May 15, 2020, ID: JJ-00876515

1:500 scale print at A4, Centre: 387117 E, 221387 N JOAN NA jAMEs

@Crown Copyright Ordnance Survey. Licence no, 100059809

27




10002
020z I4dy Q0L:} 9/eos

'S0|19
uMopYINYyD
peoy JouD Apues Lg
1e uoisua@ 9s0do.
Bunsix3 se uoneas|3 apIs Bunsix3 se uoneas|3juo. 4

28

Bunsixg se uoneAs|3 apIS Bunsix3 se uoneAs|g jeay

wowt AR O HAWOBLIWOI 03 JOLS
WIS UO DINIBD B 1SN SUMELLLID
Hy "Buime.q )L woid ajeag JoN 0Q

J % \
968kLL TGVILO
HN00 1HIYDIB-HSA MMM

N 0008 YdIE-NSID)oYeY
}o9jiyoue

- ASd



L0002
0202 1Mdy 0G:| 8jeag

80|19
umopyainyn
PeO. 040 Apues |g

Je uoisug)x3 uwmoaogn

T

| _mc:w_xm_ Se ue|d Joo|4 punols

29

MION AUR 0 JUSWBOLOUNLOD O} Joud
FUS LO PEXIND 9Q ISNUI SUOSUBWID

i "Bupmea 1), wouy sjeog 1oi og

W

96SVLL ZSPLO
00" PayydIE-Hsd MMM
AN e d8ydIE-sdDojey

109)i1youe

2ASd



L000Z
0207 Iudy 00L:| 9/eos

'S0ID

umopyainy

peoy yoid Apueg |g
1e Loisuax3 pasodold

I Pes0doid Se uoleAs|3 apig pasodolid se uoljeAa|3 Juol4

pasodolid se uoiens|3 apis ~ pesodoud se uoneas| Jesy
=_=_m s

OW AUR JO IIBUSIVAMIIOD O) 504K
SIS LO DEROD 8Q IS SUOBLELLIP
o Bumesq iy wosy enag 0N og

l,%_,

96512 ZGP10
AN OO IONIYIB-RSE MMM
Anoreiyole-ysd@Doyey

19831yose

2ASd



L0002
02Z0Z Iudy 0g:| 9jeos
'S0

umopyainyo
peoJ Jouo Apueg g

Bunsixe 0}
}09UUOD 0} uledp AA4 MBU

pesodoid Se uejd J00|4 punois

Je uoisusix3 pasodoi = )|
¢ woospeg _ woolpaq Jasep
| qr =N
| IR B
| 8 k ] AL
Q Amn
uayou| \ =
abunoT Buiuig . _ T =
AL T
felinsiug =
weeg o .
v . N ] _ J _
AR
Lyl | _ g
Fis _
" .
B Bunees yos C Wooipag
_ v s v .
_ “H
i | R B SR
oW AVE 0 IUBWRSURLULGS 03 1080 L _ . 1 . — — 1
WS UO DOIIBD 3q 191 SUCSLRUL — T N ik an Lw‘ Jolewe
v Bupme) siy) wouy sjeag Jon og \.A . _ m -— == J.l R S ——— oo ————— .l.wl*
i b il |
vt | b 1 Adoueossep | : !
) BShLL va—b X, X -4 - S E lﬂiﬂ \M
00108y NS MmM % Q. Z 2 Z_ Z Z L. Z __ f
XN oo._ug_zugn-xna@o__o‘ S e e o et ——y——— — — — \L @s LV
10311youse /
_ & Bunsixe 0
Mm HH uonepuen [eoueyosyy & ® FIBUUOD 0} ureip AAS meu




Agenda Item 5b

TEWKESBURY BOROUGH COUNCIL — DEVELOPMENT CONTROL

Committee: Planning
Date: 19 January 2021
Site Location: 26 Winston Road
Churchdown
Gloucester
Gloucestershire
GL3 2RA
Application No: 20/00993/FUL
Ward: Churchdown Brookfield With Hucclecote
Parish: Churchdown
Proposal: Erection of a two-storey side extension
Report by: Pippa Brown
Appendices: Block plan

Ground floor plan
First floor plan
Elevations

Recommendation: | Permit

1.0 SITE DESCRIPTION AND PROPOSAL

1.1. The application relates to 26 Winston Road, a two storey, brick built, semi-detached
dwelling, located on a road with similar dwelling styles, many of which have been altered and
extended. The property is located at the end of Winston Road, located three houses away
from the entrance to Churchdown School Academy, making this part of Winston Road, a
dead end. The site does not sit in any areas of restrictive designation.

1.2. The proposal seeks to build a two-storey side extension on the South West elevation of the
dwelling, where there is currently a single storey attached garage. The proposal would use
matching materials to the existing property and would largely mirror a previous extension on
the adjoining property. The extension would lie within the residential curtilage of the property
and would retain some of the storage space provided by the existing garage.

1.3. A Committee determination is required as the Parish Council is objecting to the proposal on
the grounds of the development being large in size and out of keeping with the area.

2.0 RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY

2.1 There is no planning history for the site.

32



3.0

3.1

3.2.

3.3.

3.4.

3.5.

3.6.

3.7.

3.8.

4.0

4.1.

5.0

5.1.

6.0

6.1.

6.2.

RELEVANT POLICY

The following planning guidance and policies are relevant to the consideration of this
application:

National guidance

National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) and the National Planning Practice Guidance
(NPPG).

Human Rights Act 1998 - Article 8 (Right to Respect for Private and Family Life).
The First Protocol, Article 1 (Protection of Property).

Gloucester, Cheltenham and Tewkesbury Joint Core Strategy (JCS) - Adopted 11
December 2017

Policy SD4 (Design Requirements).
Policy SD14 (Health and Environmental Quality).

Tewkesbury Borough Local Plan to 2011 - March 2006 (TBLP)
Policy HOUS8 (Domestic Extensions).

Tewkesbury Borough Plan 2011-2031 Pre-Submission Version (October 2019)
Policy RES10 (Alteration and Extension of Existing Dwellings).

CONSULTATIONS

Churchdown Parish Council - Members object on the grounds that the proposed plans are
for a large development which is out of character with the street scene.

PUBLICITY AND REPRESENTATIONS

The application has been publicised through the posting of a site notice for a period of 21
days and no letters of representation were received.

POLICY CONTEXT

Section 38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 requires that proposals be
determined in accordance with the development plan unless material considerations indicate
otherwise. Section 70(2) of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 provides that the Local
Planning Authority shall have regard to the provisions of the Development Plan, so far as
material to the application, and to any other material considerations.

The Development Plan currently comprises the Joint Core Strategy (JCS) (2017), saved

policies of the Tewkesbury Borough Local Plan to 2011 (March 2006) (TBLP), and a number
of 'made' Neighbourhood Development Plans.

33



6.3.

6.4.

7.0

7.1.

7.2.

7.3.

7.4.

7.5.

7.6.

7.7.

7.8.

The Pre-Submission Tewkesbury Borough Plan was submitted to the Secretary of State for
Housing, Communities and Local Government on 18 May 2020 for examination. On the
basis of the stage of preparation it has reached, it is considered that the plan can be afforded
at least moderate weight. However, the weight to be attributed to individual policies will be
subject to the extent to which there are unresolved objections (the less significant the
unresolved objections, the greater the weight that may be given) and their degree of
consistency with the NPPF (the closer the policies to those in the NPPF the greater the
weight that may be given).

The relevant policies are set out in the appropriate sections of this report.
ANALYSIS

Design and Visual Amenity

JCS Policy SD4 of the Joint Core Strategy sets out requirements for high quality design
while Local Plan Policy HOUS8 provides that development must respect the character, scale
and proportion of the existing dwelling and the surrounding development.

The use of matching materials would be in keeping with the street scene, meaning the visual
impact of the proposal would be minimal.

The stepped down nature of the proposed roofline, would appear subservient to the original
dwelling, and it would also largely mirror the extension on the adjoining property, creating a
sense of symmetry when viewed in the context of the semi-detached pair of dwellings.

Further examples of extensions, similar in terms of scale and design, can be seen on this
relatively small section of Winston Road and in the wider area. It is therefore considered that
the proposed extension to number 26 would not appear incongruous in the street scene.

For these reasons, the proposed extension would not appear out of keeping with the area
and is considered an acceptable addition that would accord with the relevant policies of the
Development Plan.

Effect on the Living Conditions of Neighbouring Dwellings

Policy SD14 of the JCS requires that new development must cause no harm to local amenity
including the amenity of neighbouring occupants. Local Plan Policy HOUS8 provides that
extensions to existing dwellings should not have an unacceptable impact on adjacent
property and residential amenity.

Other material policy considerations include national planning guidance contained within the
National Planning Policy Framework 2018 and the emerging Tewkesbury Borough Local
Plan (Preferred Options Consultation) 2011-2031.

The proposed extension would not cause any issues of overlooking that may affect
neighbouring amenity due to its orientation in relation to adjacent dwellings and the addition
of minimal windows. Similarly, the proposed extension would not appear overbearing or
cause any issues of overshadowing, affecting the amenity of neighbouring properties.

34



Other Matters

7.9. Due to the proximity of the property to the entrance to a secondary school and the
associated traffic, the impact of the proposal on parking provision in the street has been
carefully assessed. The proposed extension is modest, resulting in one additional bedroom,
the existing off-street parking on the driveway of the property would not be affected by the
proposal, and there are no parking restrictions on Winston Road immediately outside the
dwelling. It is considered that there would be no adverse impact on parking provision as a
consequence.

8.0 CONCLUSION AND RECOMMENDATION

8.1. ltis considered that the proposal would not be harmful to the appearance of the existing
dwelling nor the surrounding area as it would be of an acceptable scale and design. It would
not result in an unacceptable loss of residential amenity to neighbouring dwellings nor
parking provision. The proposed development would therefore accord with relevant policies
of the adopted Development Plan as outlined above. Therefore, it is recommended the
application be permitted.

8.2. CONDITIONS:

1. The works hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of five years from the date of
this consent.

Reason: Required to be imposed by Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 as
amended by Section 51 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004.

2. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the following
approved documents:

- Drawing 0003 — Proposed block plan @A2 (Received 12.10.2020)

- Drawing 9175 — Proposed elevations @A2 (Received 12.10.2020)

- Drawing 9025 — Proposed ground floor plan @A2 (Received 12.10.2020)
- Drawing 9026 — Proposed first floor plan @A2 (Received 12.10.2020)

Except where these may be modified by any other conditions attached to this permission.
Reason: To ensure that the development is carried out in accordance with the approved plans.

3. The materials to be used in the construction of the external surfaces of the proposed
development shall match those used in the existing dwelling.

Reason: To ensure that the proposed development is in keeping with the existing dwelling.

INFORMATIVES:

1. In accordance with the requirements of the NPPF the Local Planning Authority has sought to
determine the application in a positive and proactive manner by offering pre-application advice,
publishing guidance to assist the applicant, and publishing to the council's website relevant

information received during the consideration of the application thus enabling the applicant to be
kept informed as to how the case was proceeding.

35



€000 -V- ¥0- 49 - XX - VEH -S5ZL

AB) Jaquinu _o_o__ adfy _oE...g_ auoz _Qﬁ_m.s_«co_ou

JaquinN Bumelg

8o

pasodoud ue|d 9}IS

8aj} 1 ynohe

MN Vo2
€79 SO|9 UMOPY2INYD Peoy UOISUIA 92
avoy NOLSNIM 92

108loiq

2JN]08)IYdJy neg-yooH

Jo0jeu 610
diM| 0S
anss Jo asoding snjejs
asnjoNod -0

sjuaWwwo) Yy m panoiddy - g

panoiddy - v

|eaouddy jue |D

1142 WVHN31L13HO 00S:1
ON 108lold 2040 Bunss 2V © seleos
7q poraiddy | snieig | s -onss | eieq enss | WeN 1S FWWSUEIL| 1S B | G oY
TsueIL

MSVianop u 4 Jojeu 610
8y} 0} JUBLLINJOP S Y} UO SUO SS WO J0 sloue s ouedalos p Aue jiodal
K|ele pawiw 8} S UO pPayoayd ag 0} SUO SUBL P ||/ SJUBLUNOOP WO} 8|BOS
JoU 0@ S}UBWINDOP SJUB}NSUOCD Pajejal PUB SBINPaYds Suo Jeo} oads
sjepow Bu pnjou uo jewuoyu joefoid paje D0SSe 1ayjo ||B Yy m uo Jounfuod
u peasaq|eys} @ WBiAdoo s jusjuoo ub sep s} pue JuswNOp S Yl

S8JON
X0g UOJEULO| [BIBWUOIAUT PUE YyesH Kigjes

Aoidd

¥ 1E}S poyjew ejey ue 0} ‘sjeudosdde asaym ‘Bunjiom 10U JusjedWwOo &
Aqno pened eq |im Buimelp SiL} UO SHI0M ||E Jey) paLINSSE S|} BAO]E B} JO 8jou axe} Buimesp
Sy} UO pa|iejap YJom Jo sadh} ay) yum pejer fe syt Y 8y} 0} uohippe u

$ys1y uoqgdepeuogiows g sysy Bunesp/soueugue sy 2]

ue|d Aay

00€02¢

00€02¢

1)
2

36




N
9206  -v-¥a- b0+ XX - VEH -5521 VAIZ £10 SAUSIBISSNO0IO UIMOPLIINGS PROY UOISIIA 0Z ~ =
o I e ] pasodoid [00|4 3SJ14-1L0 I 2InPajyoly neg-yooH SSZL 0s:1 €S MaIADY JO4
Jann BuIMBIQ ony wnoker wony QVOY NOLSNIM 9 10l soreubug o 10sforgy 2v @ sopos | smers 0no% 10 ssoding
ng ey |90 0re| ey | W8 8 | ooy
L

A HLNOS

I
37




N
GZ06  -v-¥a- 49 XX - VEH - 552 R
e Hoehc Wi poeodaly 20013 PUNSIDD —— WAZ £10 BAUSIBISSN0IO IMOPLOINUY PROY UOISIIAL 07 21N0s1yo)y neg-yooH sszL 051 €S MBIABY o4
ey S0 ony 1oty o QYOM NOLSNIM 9! wofoig soratug — r @ somos | s iy
nng S ICT b TN 2T
Ll

A HLNOS

(8 00 uiaps) Aoegrog




N
GJL6  -v-¥0-ZZ- XX - VEH -552)
- T O D o ] pasodoid suoneAs|gy I WAZ £710 8AUSIBISECN0IO IMOPLOINUS PEOY UOISIIM 0Z 2.1N10214o.)y neg-yooH szl 05:1 €S Mo1ray 104
Jann BuIMBIQ opy okey o QVOY NOLSNIM 9 ¥0loiy soreunlvg o 10edoug Zv @ sop0s | smews onus) jo esoding
gy | smmg| T e orent | s s | ey

39

) ol

N o 11 ] s

0
EEEER




Agenda Item 5c

TEWKESBURY BOROUGH COUNCIL — DEVELOPMENT CONTROL

Committee: Planning
Date: 19 January 2021
Site Location: 3 Hertford Road
Bishops Cleeve
Cheltenham
Gloucestershire
GL52 8DA
Application No: 20/00732/FUL
Ward: Cleeve St Michaels
Parish: Bishops Cleeve
Proposal: Erection of single storey side / rear extensions and front / rear

dormer extensions

Report by: Mrs Sarah Barnes
Appendices: Site location plan
Block plan
Elevations
Floor plans

Recommendation: | Permit

1.0

1.1

1.2.

1.3.

2.0

2.1.

SITE DESCRIPTION AND PROPOSAL

The application site relates to 3 Hertford Road, a semi-detached bungalow located on a
housing estate in Bishops Cleeve (site plan attached).

The proposal is for a single storey side / rear extensions and front / rear dormer windows
(plans attached). The proposal would create a living room / utility room at ground floor level
and two new bedrooms at first floor level. The existing garage would be demolished.

A Committee determination is required as the Parish Council is objecting to the proposal on
the grounds of the proposed extensions would significantly increase the property’s footprint
and, with the dormers, would represent overdevelopment of the site.

RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY

There is no recent / relevant planning history.

40



3.0

3.1

3.2.

3.3.

3.4.

3.5.

3.6.

3.7.

3.8.

4.0

4.1.

5.0

5.1.

5.2.

6.0

6.1.

6.2.

RELEVANT POLICY

The following planning guidance and policies are relevant to the consideration of this
application:

National guidance

National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) and the National Planning Practice Guidance
(NPPG).

Gloucester, Cheltenham and Tewkesbury Joint Core Strategy (JCS) - Adopted 11
December 2017

Policy SD4 (Designh Requirements).
Policy SD14 (Health and Environmental Quality).

Tewkesbury Borough Local Plan to 2011 - March 2006 (TBLP)
Policy HOU8 (Domestic Extensions).

Tewkesbury Borough Plan 2011-2031 Pre-Submission Version (October 2019)
Policy RES10 (Alteration and Extension of Existing Dwellings).

Human Rights Act 1998 - Article 8 (Right to Respect for Private and Family Life).
The First Protocol, Article 1 (Protection of Property).
CONSULTATIONS

Parish Council — Objects. The proposed extensions would significantly increase the
property’s footprint and, with the dormers, would represent overdevelopment of the site.

PUBLICITY AND REPRESENTATIONS

The application has been publicised through the posting of a site notice for a period of 21
days.

No letters of objection have been received from neighbours.

POLICY CONTEXT

Section 38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 requires that proposals be
determined in accordance with the development plan unless material considerations indicate

otherwise. Section 70(2) of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 provides that the Local
Planning Authority shall have regard to the provisions of the Development Plan, so far as
material to the application, and to any other material considerations.

The Development Plan currently comprises the Joint Core Strategy (JCS) (2017), saved

policies of the Tewkesbury Borough Local Plan to 2011 (March 2006) (TBLP), and a number

of 'made' Neighbourhood Development Plans.

41



6.3.

6.4.

7.0

7.1.

7.2.

7.3.

7.4.

7.5.

7.6.

The Pre-Submission Tewkesbury Borough Plan was submitted to the Secretary of State for
Housing, Communities and Local Government on 18 May 2020 for examination. On the
basis of the stage of preparation it has reached, it is considered that the plan can be afforded
at least moderate weight. However, the weight to be attributed to individual policies will be
subject to the extent to which there are unresolved objections (the less significant the
unresolved objections, the greater the weight that may be given) and their degree of
consistency with the NPPF (the closer the policies to those in the NPPF the greater the
weight that may be given).

The relevant policies are set out in the appropriate sections of this report.
ANALYSIS

Design and Visual Amenity

JCS Policy SD4 of the Joint Core Strategy sets out requirements for high quality design while
Local Plan Policy HOUS8 provides that development must respect the character, scale and
proportion of the existing dwelling and the surrounding development.

The Parish Council have objected on the grounds that the proposed extensions would
significantly increase the property’s footprint and, with the dormers, would represent
overdevelopment of the site.

The Parish Council’'s concerns have been noted, however, the proposed side extension
would be modest in size and set well back from the frontage with a lower roof height. It
would therefore appear subservient. The proposed dormer windows would be set back from
the eaves and windows (on the proposed front dormer) would sit over the ground floor
windows. The dormers would therefore appear well balanced and proportionate in scale.
There are other similar sized extensions and dormer windows along this road, for example, at
no 6 Hertford Road (14/01092/FUL) and at no 7 Hertford Road (16/01013/FUL). The
proposed rear extension would be flat roofed and not readily perceptible from the road.

There would also be an acceptable amount of garden space left free from extensions /
additions. It should also be noted that this property has not been previously extended.

Overall, it is considered that the proposal would be of an appropriate size and design in
keeping with the character and appearance of the property. Therefore, the proposal would
have an acceptable impact on the character of the existing street scene and would comply
with the requirements of Policy HOUS8 of the Local Plan and Policy SD4 of the JCS.

Effect on the Living Conditions of Neighbouring Dwellings

Policy SD14 of the JCS requires that new development must cause no harm to local amenity
including the amenity of neighbouring occupants. Local Plan Policy HOUS provides that
extensions to existing dwellings should not have an unacceptable impact on adjacent
property and residential amenity. In this regard, Policy 5.1 states that the amenities of
neighbouring residential occupiers should not be unduly affected by overlooking, loss of light,
over-dominance or disturbance.

Other material policy considerations include national planning guidance contained within the

National Planning Policy Framework 2018 and the emerging Tewkesbury Borough Local
Plan (Preferred Options Consultation) 2011-2031.

42



7.7. The impact of the proposal upon neighbouring properties has carefully been assessed and it
is considered that there would not be an undue impact upon their amenity in accordance with
Policy HOUS of the Local Plan and Policy SD14 of the JCS. There would not be any issues
with overlooking from the rear dormer window given that the ‘window to window’ distance
with the nearest dwelling at the rear would be over 30 metres.

Parking

7.8. The proposed side and rear extension will necessitate the removal of the existing rear
garage. Adequate off-road parking would remain available however.

8.0 CONCLUSION AND RECOMMENDATION

8.1. Itis considered that the proposal would not be harmful to the appearance of the existing
dwelling nor the surrounding area and it would not result in an unacceptable loss of
residential amenity to neighbouring dwellings. The proposal would also be of an acceptable
size and design. It would therefore accord with relevant policies as outlined above.
Therefore, it is recommended the application be permitted.

CONDITIONS:

1. The works hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of five years from the date of
this consent.

Reason: Required to be imposed by Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 as
amended by Section 51 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004.

2. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the following
approved documents:

- 03 dated 15 September 2020 and block plan / site plan dated 14 December 2020 except where
these may be modified by any other conditions attached to this permission.

Reason: To ensure that the development is carried out in accordance with the approved plans.
INFORMATIVES:

1. In accordance with the requirements of the NPPF the Local Planning Authority has sought to
determine the application in a positive and proactive manner by offering pre-application advice,
publishing guidance to assist the applicant, and publishing to the council's website relevant
information received during the consideration of the application thus enabling the applicant to be
kept informed as to how the case was proceeding.

43



L 30vd

005/0521°1 0ZOZT AN
~Bog -ang
~umoig “PIPHD

00174 ' NOILLVOO1
SYIWAFOA ? NOISNALXT
JA3310 SAOHSId
avod QYO4143H €
-SUCIs|ASY

YoM B34S AUE 0 JUBWIIUIUWOI
ayl oy Joud sannp Q@D @enspun
oy pawodde aq snw Jaudisag (ediduug,
W “IUBI3 3y Jo ysu Ay je st Buimelp siyy Buisn
UBYBUBPUN OM  UOHINISUOY Juanbasgns
Auy “|eaosddy Buiuueld uieigo oy Japio ul Aluo
sasodind anjesnsn)| Joy 51 Jumelp siy) 330N

31vOS LON 0aQ 35v3ald

£V :9zi5 Suimelq jeuiBuo

——
05Z 191 @ wsz

————
0051 @ wol

| e———
002 @ wy
P
001 @ we
 m———
05:1 @ w1

——
0z:1 @ wr'o

——
51 @wio

yva IVOS

HLYON

uo|d >Pojg

-~

D "~ paysijowap aq o4 o6pInb Buysixg

_ uolsuayxapasodouy

UOK0T 4G

“Ajjeanyeu punoud

ayl o1 adieyasip o1 Jaiem adepns Fuimole ainieu snotod e jo aq |im Buidedspue| piey / Buipuels-piey ||y

N..\.\. 'sheme-jeos el punoJd o} Juas aq |Im Ja1em snjdins ||y "Suniaiem pue Sulysem Joopino

10} pasn aq UBD YIIYM J3IBMUIES 133]|03 ||Im 3say] "sadidumop Ja1EmUIe Japun paj|eIsul ag ||Im $1INg Ja1e M

“peoy

plojiay £ 1e uoneddde Suiuue)d pasodoid ayy Auedwodde o) Japio ul pasedasd uaaq sey JUaWaleLS SIYL

A3ajelys yuawadeue |y 1238




Z3ovd “hda M fag J0
opd  sanp ruapun
LI T (ediung,
O yEU g 1 5 B 11 Buyn
“Umug R
Ay ity Bujuue) g weg poo U uo
angeasny) o 5 B H4L 0N
s F1VS LON 00 35¥3Nd
O annr
g £y ans Jumesq jewfug

ONLLSIX3 SV

SYIWAOQ 2 SNOISNALX3

-palorg

3A331D SJOHSId
avod QYO41¥3H €

~55UPPY|

Ve IIVIS
! UolnA3[3 juoly

I

uONDAS3 ANy

i I

[_I[]
|H
[
—

q




BTy T pre——
s on sopd NP W03 aewapen
W OpAUtde 30 Imu saulsag RdULL,

£30vd

W W By 0 Y ) e 5 Bume,

-umpig) §aom
Auy “peacucidy Bujue)4 weago o3 530 U Quo

1 sas00nd aARASN| 503 5 BUMBIR By L 00N
00171

s F1VS LON 00 35¥3Nd

0Z0Z anr

£V oS Jumesq (eufug

~SUOKIADY

Q3sOdoyd sv

S

100]4 IS1L

T

WOOHGIE/INIAI

e

SYIWAOQ 2 SNOISNALX3

-palorg

3A331D SJOHSId
avod QYO41¥3H €

uoynAd|3 apls

~55UPPY|

Ve IIVIS

UOHDAS[3 4naY

UoHNA3|3 3pIS
sy ixla|_

-

ONIAN

T

Anun

UOHDAR]] juo.y

46

|
I,

11010

HHHIK

I




Agenda Item 5d

TEWKESBURY BOROUGH COUNCIL — DEVELOPMENT CONTROL

Committee: Planning
Date: 19 January 2021
Site Location: 34 Rosefield Crescent
Newtown
Tewkesbury
Gloucestershire
GL20 8EH
Application No: 20/01006/FUL
Ward: Tewkesbury East
Parish: Tewkesbury
Proposal: Erection of a single storey rear extension
Report by: Pippa Brown
Appendices: Site location plan

Existing elevations
Proposed elevations
Proposed floor plans

Recommendation: | Permit

1.0 SITE DESCRIPTION AND PROPOSAL

1.1. The application relates to 34 Rosefield Crescent, a two storey, brick built, semi-detached
dwelling, located on a road with similar dwelling styles, many of which have been altered and
extended. The dwelling is accessed by a small road, off the main part of Rosefield Crescent
and benefits from a driveway to the front and side. The site is located in Flood Zone 2, but
not in any other areas of restrictive designation.

1.2. The proposal seeks to demolish an existing conservatory and erect a single storey rear
extension in its place, on the south elevation of the dwelling. The proposal would cover the
area of the existing conservatory and extend further into the garden, retaining some of the
storage area provided by the existing garage. The proposal would use matching materials to
the main dwelling and have a roofline, higher than the existing conservatory.

1.3. A Committee determination is required as the Parish Council is objecting to the proposal on
the grounds that the development would result in the adjoining property losing useful
morning sunlight.

2.0 RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY

2.1 There is no relevant planning history for the site.

47



3.0

3.1

3.2.

3.3.

3.4.

3.5.

3.6.

3.7.

3.8.

4.0

4.1.

5.0

5.1.

6.0

6.1.

6.2.

6.3.

RELEVANT POLICY

The following planning guidance and policies are relevant to the consideration of this
application:

National guidance

National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) and the National Planning Practice Guidance
(NPPG).

Human Rights Act 1998 - Article 8 (Right to Respect for Private and Family Life).

The First Protocol, Article 1 (Protection of Property).

Gloucester, Cheltenham and Tewkesbury Joint Core Strategy (JCS) - Adopted 11
December 2017

Policy SD4 (Design Requirements).
Policy SD14 (Health and Environmental Quality).

Tewkesbury Borough Local Plan to 2011 - March 2006 (TBLP)
Policy HOUS8 (Domestic Extensions).

Tewkesbury Borough Plan 2011-2031 Pre-Submission Version (October 2019)
Policy RES10 (Alteration and Extension of Existing Dwellings).

CONSULTATIONS

Tewkesbury Town Council — Objection based on concerns that the adjoining property will
lose useful morning sunlight.

PUBLICITY AND REPRESENTATIONS

Local Residents - The application has been publicised through the posting of a site notice for
a period of 21 days and no letters of representation were received.

POLICY CONTEXT

Section 38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 requires that proposals be
determined in accordance with the development plan unless material considerations indicate
otherwise. Section 70(2) of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 provides that the Local
Planning Authority shall have regard to the provisions of the Development Plan, so far as
material to the application, and to any other material considerations.

The Development Plan currently comprises the Joint Core Strategy (JCS) (2017), saved
policies of the Tewkesbury Borough Local Plan to 2011 (March 2006) (TBLP), and a number
of 'made' Neighbourhood Development Plans.

The Pre-Submission Tewkesbury Borough Plan was submitted to the Secretary of State for
Housing, Communities and Local Government on 18 May 2020 for examination. On the
basis of the stage of preparation it has reached it is considered that the plan can be afforded
at least moderate weight. However, the weight to be attributed to individual policies will be
subject to the extent to which there are unresolved objections (the less significant the
unresolved objections, the greater the weight that may be given) and their degree of

48



6.4.

7.0

7.1.

7.2.

7.3.

7.4.

7.5.

7.6.

7.7.

7.8.

consistency with the NPPF (the closer the policies to those in the NPPF the greater the
weight that may be given).

The relevant policies are set out in the appropriate sections of this report.
ANALYSIS

Design and Visual Amenity

JCS Policy SD4 of the Joint Core Strategy sets out requirements for high quality design
while Local Plan Policy HOUS8 provides that development must respect the character, scale
and proportion of the existing dwelling and the surrounding development.

The proposed single storey extension is a hipped roof design. It would be sited within the
rear garden of the property. It would not be visible from the street scene and therefore would
have no detrimental impact on the visual appearance or character of the street.

The proposal would involve the demolition of an existing flat-roofed conservatory structure
and its replacement with a larger, brick built hipped-roof extension. It would be taller at the
ridge than the existing due to the hipped roofline, but the eaves height would be almost
identical. Like the existing conservatory it would extend across almost the entire width of the
rear elevation of the dwelling but due to it being nearly twice the depth it would have a larger
footprint. The extension would use materials to closely match the existing dwelling, which
would be in keeping with the visual appearance of the dwelling.

It is considered that the proposal would be of an appropriate size and design in keeping with
the character and appearance of the property. Therefore, the proposal would have an
acceptable impact on the character of the surrounding area and complies with the
requirements of Policy HOUS8 of the Local Plan and Policy SD4 of the JCS.

Effect on the Living Conditions of Neighbouring Dwellings

Policy SD14 of the JCS requires that new development must cause no harm to local amenity
including the amenity of neighbouring occupants. Local Plan Policy HOUS8 provides that
extensions to existing dwellings should not have an unacceptable impact on adjacent
property and residential amenity.

Other material policy considerations include national planning guidance contained within the
National Planning Policy Framework 2018 and the emerging Tewkesbury Borough Local
Plan (Preferred Options Consultation) 2011-2031.

The proposal would lie within the rear garden of the property and would be single storey in
nature with the only proposed openings facing directly into the applicant’'s own rear garden.
By virtue of this, the fact that the extension is single storey and the site is not bordered to the
rear by any other properties, the proposed extension would not cause any issues of
overlooking affecting the amenity of neighbouring dwellings.

Whilst the proposal would be larger in terms of its depth and roof, over and above the
existing conservatory, it is not considered to have an adverse overbearing impact affecting
neighbouring dwellings. The extension would be partially screened from the adjacent
property to the east due to the retention of the existing garage structure located on the
eastern side of the garden. To the west, the garden is screened by a 1.8m high fence. Whilst
part of the flank wall up to the eaves of the proposed extension adjacent to the western
boundary would be visible to the neighbour over the boundary fence, the hipped roofline
would slope away from the boundary, ensuring that it would not appear overbearing.

49



7.9. Similarly, the Parish Council has raised concerns that the adjoining property may experience
a loss of morning sunlight as a result of the proposal. Upon visiting the site and considering
the orientation of the dwellings in relation to each other (both of which have south facing rear
gardens), and the movement of the sun, it is considered that any loss of morning sunlight
over and above the existing situation would not be considered harmful enough to justify the
refusal of the application. It is noted that the light received into the effected rear ground floor
window of the neighbouring property is already restricted by a large rear extension serving
that dwelling.

7.10. The impact of the proposal upon neighbouring properties has carefully been assessed and it
is considered that there would not be an undue impact upon their amenity in accordance with
Policy HOUS of the Local Plan and Policy SD14 of the JCS.

8.0 CONCLUSION AND RECOMMENDATION

8.1. Itis considered that the proposal would not be harmful to the appearance of the existing
dwelling nor the surrounding area and it would not result in an unacceptable loss of
residential amenity to neighbouring dwellings. The proposal would also be of an acceptable
size and design. It would therefore accord with relevant policies as outlined above.
Therefore, it is recommended the application be permitted.

8.2. CONDITIONS:

1. The works hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of five years from the date of
this consent.

Reason: Required to be imposed by Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 as
amended by Section 51 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004.

2. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the following
approved documents:

- Drawing SH1 — Site location and block plan @A3 (Received 14.10.2020)

- Drawing SH5 — Proposed ground floor plan @A3 (Received 14.10.2020)

- Drawing SH6 — Proposed elevations @A3 (Received 14.10.2020)

Except where these may be modified by any other conditions attached to this permission.

Reason: To ensure that the development is carried out in accordance with the approved plans.

3. The materials to be used in the construction of the external surfaces of the proposed
development shall match those used in the existing dwelling.

Reason: To ensure that the proposed development is in keeping with the existing dwelling.
INFORMATIVES:

1. In accordance with the requirements of the NPPF the Local Planning Authority has sought to
determine the application in a positive and proactive manner by offering pre-application advice,
publishing guidance to assist the applicant, and publishing to the council's website relevant
information received during the consideration of the application thus enabling the applicant to be
kept informed as to how the case was proceeding.

50



b2Sube vE9L0 xeq/1o)
NQL 02719 soD
Aingsexway
UET UBID UodU)
$821A10S 0.0V Ul

00S/1 37VIS - NV1d %)018

W ewerag@doysirwey
695485 ¥89L0 XV
S¥IC6S 18910 AL

e
ous dejy ay]

NOISN31X3 03S0d0¥dd

&)

0SZL/1 37VIS - NV1d NOILVYIOT

LLEBLO00L "Ou 33uadn) “Aanng durupiO 1ybukdo) :;EUO*
N 9897€2 '3 1ZS06E /449D ‘g 1 Juud a5 052111
Aoy doysdewany mwn

£1690600-LdN 1 ‘0202 9 13qo10 ‘Aepsany
21e25 0000L/0052/052 deppaisely mo“

51



LZSO6Z ¥89L0 Xedje )

0S-1 311V¥)

S

300714 ONNOYY

39VYVYO

-

NIHILIN

P\C::
.

TIVH

el

M

|

i
i

|

ONINIa

JONNOT

£

AYOLVAY¥ISNOD ﬂ///

A

=1

L

ONILSIX3ISVSNV1d

'SOTO'AYNESINMIL LNIISIYI Q13143S08'9€

52



LCSYOL PHYLY K€ jo)
NQL 02719 %019
AINGSORME |
9UET UBBID LU
S9UAIOG POV UB)

00L-1 37VIS

A ———A T b A g )\Jl\r,\)(\ﬂl\

an

BN I

101S LNOY 4

o

ONILSIXI SV SNOILVAITS .moS.»a:mmume L'IN3ISIYI 01314350 7E

53



LZSO6Z ¥89L0 XudNe)
NQL 0219 0D
euRT uesIp :g.-.
SOIAI08 0.0y W)

06-1 37VIS

40074 ONNOYY

l¥0d ¥V

3¥0LS

&

_ -

03S0d408d SYSNV1d

WOOY NNS

|l
|
N

'SOT9°AYNESINMIL LNIISIYI 013143S0UE

54

Olivd




LZ9V6Z YEULO XS 410L
001108 810y e
00L-1 37V2S

Saricsv >

MREVPY QL VPNV

W T e
e ——aa
e e
=== = ===

MUV QL STLL

e e

03S0d08d SV SNOILVAIT]

4V
iy s~ s)id.x({.fﬁrf\
PO shvend
ALY @l FPVIL \\\ﬂ\ h )
ot
101S INOY¥ 4

0
H
T

'SOT9'A¥NESINMI L LNIISIYI 013143S0d'YE

55



Agenda Item 5e

TEWKESBURY BOROUGH COUNCIL — DEVELOPMENT CONTROL

Committee: Planning

Date: 19 January 2021

Site Location: Buckland Manor Farm
Buckland
Broadway
Worcestershire
WR12 7LY

Application No: 20/00107/FUL

Ward: Isbourne

Parish: Buckland

Proposal: Demolition of an existing agricultural workers dwelling, the erection

of an open market replacement dwelling of exceptional quality
design and the erection of a barn incorporating a bat roost.

Report by: Catherine Ashby

Appendices: Site Location Plan, dated 03/02/2020
Proposed Site Plan, including definition of residential curtilage,
5.2.1.1C, dated 01/12/2020
Proposed Elevation South, 5.2.11.1B, dated 01/09/2020
Proposed Elevation West, 5.2.9.1B, dated 01/09/2020
Proposed Elevation North 5.2.13.1B, dated 01/09/2020
Proposed Elevation East, 5.2.15.1BA, dated 01/09/2020

Recommendation: | Delegated Permit

1.0 SITE DESCRIPTION AND PROPOSAL

1.1. The application site is an isolated farmstead located near the head of a localised valley to
the south-east of the village of Buckland, located within the Cotswolds AONB. Due to the
topography of the site it benefits from significant visual containment. The site includes a 3-
bedroom farmhouse constructed in the 1970s, swimming pool, patio, stables (converted to
guest accommodation and outhouses) and a tennis court, as well as an extensive driveway,
parking and hardstanding. This area encompasses the residential curtilage of the property.
The site is accessed via a long private driveway that branches off the road that passes
through the village (The Lane).

1.2. The wider land ownership extending beyond the residential curtilage encompasses a total
area of 166 acres (67 hectares). North of the site are two large agricultural buildings and to
the east and south of the site are a number of fields bounded by a young tree belt. To the
west is the existing access road. The wider site contains several landscape character areas,
which can be categorised as woodland, the lower plateau, managed parkland, built form and
hardstanding, the valley and the lower scarp.

56



1.3.

1.4.

1.5.

1.6.

1.7.

There are no listed buildings in close proximity to the existing dwelling. The closest is the
Grade Il Buckland Wood House, located 700m to the east, and the listed buildings in
Buckland village some 650m to the northwest. The site lies outside Buckland Conservation
Area. Three Public Rights of Way (PROW) are in proximity to the site but there is no public
access through the site. The Cotswold Way passes to the north and east and there is a
private access to it from the barns. The Winchcombe Way to the south of the site links the
Cotswold Way with Buckland. The application site is located in Flood Zone 1, defined as an
area with the lowest probability of flooding.

The current proposal is for the demolition of the existing agricultural workers dwelling and
ancillary buildings at Buckland Manor Farm and the erection of a substantial detached,
seven-bedroom open market dwelling of contemporary, modern design, as well as
landscaping and other associated works. The proposed accommodation includes: a boot
room, WC/cloak room, gym, office, music room, hobby room, main living/sunrooms,
kitchen/utility/pantry, breakfast and dining areas, snug/library, guest bedrooms/bathrooms,
an internal lift and balconies. Externally there would be a courtyard, terrace, swimming pool,
car port and undercroft car parking. The existing driveway leading up to and around the
property would be retained in a similar location, with a drop-off point provided at the front of
the property and the main, household entrance to the rear. A new barn would be constructed
adjacent to the existing barns on the site to provide a bat roost. An extensive landscape
strategy has been drawn up for the application site and extends to the wider setting outside
of the application boundary.

A substantial package of supporting information has been submitted with the application: a
Planning Statement, detailed Architectural and Landscape Proposals, comprising a Design
and Access Statement, a Landscape and Visual Assessment, Ecology Report, Arboricultural
Method Statement, and Arboricultural Impact Assessment and Tree Protection Plan. This
includes a detailed analysis of the site/wider area and its defining characteristics, surveys of
the existing site, details of the design strategies and process, and design proposals
(including landscape, buildings, bat mitigation, access strategy and construction and energy
methodology).

The applicant recognises that the site lies outside of a settlement boundary and, whilst it is
technically a replacement dwelling, the development is being submitted as a dwelling of
exceptional quality and innovative design, which they consider would satisfy the tests set out
at Paragraph 79e of the NPPF; relating to the creation of isolated homes in the countryside.
The removal of the agricultural tie on the existing dwelling is also proposed through the
application and a justification provided.

The Planning Statement and Architectural and Landscape Proposals state that the proposal
has been led by a meticulous design process that has been informed by identification of the
site constraints from the outset, assessment of the applicant’s brief, and identification of a
number of design rules and parameters. The design has been informed by opportunities to
provide mitigation measures and enhancement to the baseline landscape character and
visual amenity.

57



1.8.

1.9.

1.10.

1.11.

The building would be a large-scale, contemporary design that differs from traditional
buildings in the locality. However, the applicant states that the dwelling has been sensitively
designed in response to the setting and the site’s defining characteristics and seeks to raise
the standard of architecture more generally within a rural area. The meandering flowing
landforms of the valley setting have inspired the organic, fluid, curved architectural form of
the proposed dwelling. It would be two-storey and no higher than the existing dwelling on the
site. The mass of the building would be greater as it would broadly occupy the footprint of the
existing dwelling, adjacent outbuildings and the spaces in between. It would comprise a
central ‘atrium’ with two ‘wings’ flowing out from either side. The building elevations would be
set back under the deep eaves of the curved, flowing form of the roof. The north-west wing
features a soft cantilever that extends out to meet the adjacent landform and a landscape
wall which provides a visual anchor. Due to the rising topography of the site the building
would nestle into the head of the valley, with the front elevation facing west/southwest down
the valley and the rear elevation concealed from public view behind the rising valley
landform.

A simple palette of materials is proposed, including a limited colour palette to respond to the
tones and colours in the locality. Cotswold stone and timber would be the predominant
materials; the stone sourced from local quarries and local timber where appropriate and
available. Any contemporary materials would respect the local colour palette. Cotswold stone
would be used mainly at ground floor level to ground the building with lighter weight timber
and some grey metal cladding at first floor. The central atrium/sunroom would feature
expanses of glazing with bronze coloured frames, with large glazed openings also present
on both elevations. Lightweight English Chestnut timber fins are proposed to be fitted over
the atrium glazing and a number of other openings to manage sustainability objectives and
lightspill. The brown roofscape would incorporate a cover of local stone aggregates, with a
mat brown bronze metal perimeter to harmonise the building into the landscape setting.
Local Cotswold stone and aggregates would also be used in terraced walls and parking
areas around the dwelling.

The applicant explains that the design ethos of the building has been informed by the 2030
climate change agenda, which the architectural practice appointed to design the building has
been committed to throughout its long involvement with Paragraph (55) 79 schemes. The
proposed dwelling is designed according to the principles of Passivhaus, optimising passive
solar gains and built with airtight fabric first principles to retain heat during winter months,
allowing for significantly less energy to be used than normally required. To this end the
proposal includes a bespoke combination of renewable energy technology systems: a roof
mounted PV array utilising existing agricultural buildings to power the proposed dwelling and
buildings; and biomass: extensive areas of woodland and tree planting on land under the
applicant’s ownership and stewardship will generate tonnage of wood through sustainable
management.

The application includes an extensive landscape masterplan for the wider site beyond the
domestic curtilage which is integral to the design proposal. The overarching concept is to re-
wild and increase the biodiversity value of the site by removing more formal, non-native
landscaping and mown grass areas associated with the existing dwelling. The intention is to
have a beneficial impact on the quality and longevity of landscape features and habitats,
creating a more naturalised landscape to protect and enhance the existing character of the
site and the wider AONB setting. This would include some remodelling of landforms around
the new dwelling to produce a softened approach that flows into the natural landscape
around it. Beyond this the proposals include: extending woodland areas, creating areas of
rough species rich grassland and marshy grassland, hedge planting, filling gaps in existing
hedgerows and removal of non-native laurel, enhancing botanical interest along widened
stream corridors and the existing pond, reduce mowing of grassland to produce a hay
meadow, a SUDS strategy that would include a new pond to collect rainwater run-off from

58



the dwelling and swales, and overflows into existing streams, sensitive positioning of solar
panels on existing barns where they would be screened in views from the public right of way,
and a new portion of driveway to allow for a shallower turn into the parking area.

1.12. As the above commentary describes the proposals have been through a design process
which is thoroughly documented in the application submission and available for Members to
view via public access. The plans attached to this report show the final proposed site plan
and elevations. A number of 3D colour images have also been produced which assist in the
understanding of the final scheme but have not been attached to this report as they do not
reproduce effectively. These can also be viewed via public access. The officer
presentation at Planning Committee will include the proposed site plans, elevations,

illustrative landscape masterplan and 3D images.

2.0 RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY

Application Proposal Decision Decision
Number Date
01/00080/FUL | Alterations and extension to existing dwelling NONDET 04.07.2001
APPEAL
DISMISSED
07/01001/FUL | Lean-to extension to existing livestock agricultural PER 07.05.2008
building.
82/00359/FUL | Erection of a boundary wall and fence 1.064m. high. PER 28.09.1982
Erection of a greenhouse.
84/00491/FUL | Erection of a 1m high boundary fence. PER 18.05.1984
10/01009/FUL | Removal of existing flat roofed garden room and WDN 08.11.2010
replacement with first floor bedroom extension within
new pitched roof above.
11/00059/FUL | Replacement of existing single storey flat roofed REF 18.03.2011
garden room with a proposed two storey side
extension.
12/00915/CLE | Application for the continued residential use of the NONDET 24.10.2013
dwelling without complying with an agricultural APPEAL
occupancy condition. DISMISSED
13/00038/PRE | Proposed replacement dwelling DONE 25.10.2013
14/00483/FUL | Application to remove agricultural occupancy WDN 25.11.2015
condition (b) of planning application: T.6206/D

3.0 RELEVANT POLICY

3.1. The following planning guidance and policies are relevant to the consideration of this
application:

National guidance

3.2. National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) and the National Planning Practice Guidance
(NPPG).

59



3.3.

3.4.

3.5.

3.6.

3.7.

3.8.

4.0

4.1.

Gloucester, Cheltenham and Tewkesbury Joint Core Strategy (JCS) - Adopted 11

December 2017
Policies: SD3, SD4, SD6, SD7, SD8, SD9, SD10, SD14, INF1, INF2, INF3, INF5.

Tewkesbury Borough Local Plan to 2011 - March 2006 (TBLP)
Policies: HOU7, AGR3, AGRS.

Tewkesbury Borough Plan 2011-2031 — Pre-Submission Version (October 2019)
Policies: RES3, RES9, AGR4, NAT1, NAT3, ENV2, INF6.

Human Rights Act 1998 - Article 8 (Right to Respect for Private and Family Life).
The First Protocol, Article 1 (Protection of Property).
The Cotswolds Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty Management Plan 2018-2023
Policies: CC3, CC7, CC8, CE1, CES3, CE7, CE10.
CONSULTATIONS
Buckland Parish Council: No objection but raises the following comments/ concerns:

¢ No objection to the design or positioning of the replacement dwelling.

o No evidence that the Agricultural Occupancy condition has been lifted. Does this not
have a bearing?

o Will the Parish Council benefit from CIL receipts, or some benefits from the disruption
caused by this large build?

e Extremely concerned about the damage heavy traffic over a prolonged period will
cause to verges, drains and road surfaces. Would hope this can be reviewed through
the build.

e Concerns that tight corners/ gradient could create a dangerous conflict between HGVs
and walkers/cyclists/horse riders. Could a traffic light system be implemented?

e If the road to Top Farm is used the safety of walkers should be addressed.

e Entry onto the village road from the B4632 needs a wide swing round, perhaps this can
be looked at.

¢ Residents have voiced concerns about potential damage to footings of roadside
houses.

County Highways — No objection initially. Later objection received on the grounds of the
sustainability of the location for a new dwelling.

4.3.

4.4,

4.5,

County Public Rights of Way — No objection.
County Archaeologist — No objection.

Natural England — No comments.

60



4.6.

4.7.

4.8.

4.9.

4.10.

5.0

5.1.

Cotswolds Conservation Board — Object.

Acknowledge that the development is of a high-quality design and has the potential to deliver
a number of benefits, including naturalising the existing grounds.

Acknowledge that the visual impacts of local footpaths, including the Cotswold Way, are
likely to be limited due to existing, intervening vegetation.

Considers it does not meet the requirement, under paragraph 79 of the NPPF, for the design
to be of exceptional quality. It is not sufficiently sensitive to the defining characteristics of the
local area.

Does not meet the requirement under JCS Policy SD7 for the proposed development to be
consistent with the policies in the Cotswolds AONB Management Plan.

The development is in a highly sensitive location on the Cotswolds escarpment which is one
of the ‘special qualities’ of the Cotswolds AONB.

The proposal would be excessive in scale for the local landscape character.

It would not adequately respect local distinctiveness and character, including local building
styles and materials.

It would have an adverse impact on the tranquillity and dark skies of the Cotswolds AONB.

It would have an adverse visual impact for local receptors: Buckland Conservation Area,
users of the Winchcombe Way, Buckland Manor Hotel, St Michael's Church, users of the
footpath on Burhill Iron Age Hillfort.

Summary of key concerns: Scale of the proposed dwelling, local distinctiveness, tranquillity
(reflection of sunlight), dark skies (light pollution) and visual impact.

Whilst the submitted Landscape and Visual Assessment seek to address all these issues to
varying degrees, the Board’s concerns are not adequately addressed, in particular with
reference to the scale of the building which should be significantly reduced.

Advise the LPA to thoroughly assess the proposed removal of the agricultural workers’
occupancy condition.

If planning permission is granted recommend conditions be imposed to minimise reflection of
sunlight, light pollution, use of stone from local quarries and incorporation of architectural
features that reflect the local, Cotswold vernacular.

Drainage Adviser — No objection.
Landscape Adviser — No objection.

Ecology Adviser — No objection subject to updating of the Ecological Report to include
details of ecological supervision during the demolition of building B1.

Environmental Health Officer — No objection
PUBLICITY AND REPRESENTATIONS

The application has been publicised through the posting of a site notice for a period of 21
days. Following the receipt of amended plans and details a revised plans site notice was
posted in December 2020 for a further period of 14 days. Six representations have been
received in response to the submitted plans and none to the revised plans. The comments
raised are summarised below:

61



6.0

6.1.

6.2.

6.3.

6.4.

6.5.

7.0

7.1.

The proposed house and buildings would blend in well where it is situated; it is virtually
impossible to see the existing house from surrounding walks.

Contemporary design is out of keeping with local Cotswolds architecture and the AONB and
should be of a traditional design in Cotswold stone.

Using hi-tech and modern materials does not equate in this case to exceptional design.

The size, design, location and disruption to ecology, AONB and village life would be severe
with no enhancements or improvements.

There will be an impact on the village arising from heavy construction traffic, which could
take some years — vibration, congestion, damage to verges, dangerous conflict with walkers,
horse riders, parked vehicles.

It would be a consolation if the project were to give something back to the region by
providing opportunities for specialist craftspeople living in and around the AONB.

The proposal will only benefit the applicants with no reciprocal benefits to the village.
Dwelling should be sited so as not to restrict views of walkers using the Cotswold Way.

Query removal of removal of non-native species in the landscape strategy; would this apply
to laurels planted in existing hedgerows on the periphery?

POLICY CONTEXT

Section 38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 requires that proposals be
determined in accordance with the development plan unless material considerations indicate
otherwise. Section 70(2) of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 provides that the Local
Planning Authority shall have regard to the provisions of the Development Plan, so far as
material to the application, and to any other material considerations.

The Development Plan currently comprises the Joint Core Strategy (JCS) (2017), saved
policies of the Tewkesbury Borough Local Plan to 2011 (March 2006) (TBLP), and a number
of 'made' Neighbourhood Development Plans.

The Pre-Submission Tewkesbury Borough Plan was submitted to the Secretary of State for
Housing, Communities and Local Government on 18 May 2020 for examination. On the
basis of the stage of preparation it has reached it is considered that the plan can be afforded
at least moderate weight. However, the weight to be attributed to individual policies will be
subject to the extent to which there are unresolved objections (the less significant the
unresolved objections, the greater the weight that may be given) and their degree of
consistency with the NPPF (the closer the policies to those in the NPPF the greater the
weight that may be given).

Other material policy considerations include the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF)
and its associated Planning Practice Guidance.

The relevant policies are set out in the appropriate sections of this report.
ANALYSIS

The main issues for consideration within this application are:

The principle of the development, including the removal of the agricultural tie and a
replacement dwelling of exceptional quality and truly outstanding or innovative design;

The design of the development and visual impact on the Cotswolds AONB,;

62



7.2.

7.3.

7.4.

7.5.

7.6.

The impact of the development on biodiversity and protected species;
The highway safety and accessibility implications of the development;
The impact upon archaeology and heritage assets;

The impact on flood risk and drainage; and

Impact on residential amenity.

Principle of Development

The proposed development lies in an isolated location in the open countryside outside any
defined settlement boundary, the proposal is not intended to meet the essential need for a
rural worker and nor does it seek to provide affordable housing. The proposal is therefore
contrary to policies SD10 and SD12 of the JCS. Whilst technically the proposal is a
replacement dwelling it is not considered to fall within the parameters of saved Policy HOU7
of the TBLP by virtue of its scale and design. Nonetheless, emerging TBP Policy RES9 is
less restrictive in this respect providing that a proposed design has no unacceptable adverse
impact on the landscape. The proposal is however contrary to the adopted Development
Plan.

The applicants accept that the proposal is contrary to the Development Plan and are
proposing it on the grounds that special circumstances exist to warrant the granting of
planning permission allowed under Paragraph 79(e) of the NPPF.

‘Exceptional quality’ argument

Section 5 of the NPPF ‘Delivering a sufficient supply of homes’ states, at Paragraph 79, that
planning policies and decisions should avoid the development of isolated homes in the
countryside except in a limited number of circumstances. One such circumstance is where a
development proposes a dwelling of ‘exceptional quality’, in accordance with the special
circumstances identified within Paragraph 79e of the NPPF. The policy requires
development of isolated homes in the countryside to be of exceptional quality in that it:

- Is truly outstanding or innovative, reflecting the highest standards of architecture, and
would help raise standards of design more generally in rural areas; and

- Would significantly enhance its immediate setting and be sensitive to the defining
characteristics of the local area.

Meeting the requirements of a Paragraph 79 dwelling is a high bar to reach and even more
challenging in the sensitive setting of an AONB.

Section 12 of the NPPF makes it clear that the Government attaches great importance to the
design of the built environment and the creation of high-quality buildings and places.
Decisions should ensure that developments will function well and add to the overall quality of
the area, not just for the short term but over the lifetime of the development, that they are
sympathetic to local character and history, including the surrounding built environment and
landscape setting, while not preventing or discouraging appropriate innovation or change. It
goes on to say that great weight should be given to outstanding or innovative designs which
promote high levels of sustainability or help raise standards of design more generally within
an area, so long as they fit in with the overall form and layout of their surroundings.

63



7.7.

7.8.

7.9.

7.10.

7.11.

The submitted Architectural and Landscape Proposals comprising the Design and Access
Statement (DAS) sets out the detailed site and contextual analysis that has been carried out
to inform the eventual design. The site’s topography, its landscape character and defining
characteristics (including that of the wider area) have been taken into consideration to inform
the layout and design of the architectural style of the proposal. The aim being to create a
building that responds to and integrates with its sensitive landscape setting. The
complementary landscaping scheme for the wider site builds on this ethos by returning it to a
more naturalised state befitting of the AONB setting and anchoring the new dwelling in its
contextual landscape.

The DAS explains that the central design objectives relate to:

e Landscape character: enhancing the arrival experience, strengthening and reinforcing
woodland, hedgerows and grassland mosaic, enhancing wooded stream corridors,
enhancing views and sunrise/et;

e Settlement character: responding to the dispersed, scattered grain commonly found in
the valley character zone, retaining the sense of enclosure and containment provided
by the valley;

e Creation of a sense of arrival;

¢ Retaining the sense of containment within the valley setting: proposed house should
not exceed that of the existing ridge, respond to long, medium and short distance
views within the valley and retain the sense of enclosure.

e Retaining and responding to the sense of the valley: long and short distance views, the
defining characteristics of the rolling, undulating topography to inform the architectural
style and allowing the house to seamlessly integrate within the landscape.

e Sense of place: the proposal should use a simple palette of materials, should be a
limited colour palette as found within the local area, stone to be used as the primary
material found in the valley character area, warm tomes to be used on the house.

The DAS suggests that for designs to be considered original, innovative or exceptional they
do not necessarily have to be of a form or appearance to that which already exists. They
highlight other contemporary Paragraph 79 dwellings that have been permitted elsewhere in
AONBSs, including in Tewkesbury Borough (the ‘Leaf House’ at Headlands, Prestbury).

The draft proposal was submitted to the Gloucestershire Design Review Panel (GDRP) at
pre-application stage who provided detailed feedback on the scheme, which was then further
developed by the applicant prior to submitting the planning application. The GDRP has since
undertaken a second review of the submitted application. The panel concluded that the
revisions undertaken were very positive, having evolved significantly since the first review.
They considered that the scheme presents a strong sense of place and that the building sits
comfortably in the landscape. The Panel were relaxed about the proposed scale and overall
massing. Taking the scheme in its totality, subject to refinement of some elements, they
considered that it had the potential to be a truly outstanding piece of architecture which
would help raise the standards of design generally in rural areas. The panel considered that
the proposal nestles harmoniously into the topography and is sympathetic to the landscape
context, and the proposal is ‘sensitive to the defining characteristics of the area.’

The applicant has noted the Review Panel's comments on detailed aspects of the scheme
and has made a number of amendments in response to them. These are illustrated as
‘Before and After’ images by the applicant which will be displayed in the Officer presentation
at Planning Committee and are summarised as follows:

64



7.12.

7.13.

7.14.

The heavy feel of the timber cladding on the first floor has been replaced with visually lighter
timber fins to give the appearance of a more lightweight structure at first floor, which reflects
the timber fins on the central sunroom and unifying the design around the building, together
with a finer carport structure.

The eastern elevation has been simplified through reducing a number of elements and a
continuous curve has been introduced to bind the elements together. The first floor now
displays the use of timber fins which follow through from the front elevation, again producing
a more unified design.

The eaves line has been amended to provide a more constant width, simpler geometry and
less undulations in the elevations.

To reduce the impact of the cantilever and bind it more successfully to the flowing
architectural form of the building within its immediate landscape setting a curved landscaped
wall has been introduced below the cantilever which visually ‘supports’ the first floor and
assists its integration with the landscaping around the building.

Amendments to the SUDs strategy have been made and the Council's Drainage Adviser
considers that an acceptable detailed drainage strategy for the site can be achieved, which
would be secured via condition.

The applicants desire for a ‘drop-off point’ visitor entrance at the front, separate from the
private entrance to the rear, does not completely overcome the DRPs comments regarding
legibility of the main entrance in the overall design. Nevertheless, amendments to the design
of the front entrance have been made to simplify its form, with the removal of the majority of
formal terracing and its replacement with naturalised, landscaping that blends more
successfully with the immediate garden landscape setting of the building. This is considered
an improvement which enhances the overall design. The legibility of the front entrance whilst
desirable is not considered to be critical.

On balance it is considered that the further refinements to the design resolves the points
raised by the GDRP, producing a more cohesive, sculptural building that integrates the
architectural form into an enhanced landscape context, as expressed in the original design
objectives.

Sustainability and innovation

The DAS sets out that the architect built his own house of exceptional quality and design
(‘Crossway Passive House’) in the countryside of Kent in 2009 under the policy provision of
paragraphs 10 and 11 of PPS7 as it then stood. The Crossway Passive House has
incorporated an array of monitoring systems that, in collaboration with Cambridge University,
monitor various aspects of building physics, lifestyle and resource consumption. It is
suggested that the data obtained over the intervening period, and which continues to be
collected, provides the Architect with a unique and valuable evidence base from which they
are able to innovate. Indeed, the approach taken at Crossways has been further developed
in successive domestic building projects, in different contexts, which themselves are
monitored to build the evidence base for the continued development of innovative low carbon
strategies. The construction and energy technologies developed are not unique, having been
used elsewhere, but represent the highest standards of sustainable design in architecture.

The DAS confirms that underpinning the exceptional quality of the design of the proposed
development are a series of innovative low carbon energy strategies that relate specifically
to the site characteristics and the opportunities presented therein. The proposed strategy
would be as follows.

65



7.15.

7.16.

7.17.

7.18.

7.19.

Fabric First: The initial objective is to reduce the amount of energy the building needs in the
first instance. This ‘fabric first’ approach would provide for extremely well insulated walls and
triple glazed windows. A proposed minimum of 300mm wall and roof insulation will trap heat
within the building. The building will be built with a high airtightness level. A Mechanical
Ventilation Heat Recovery system will recover over 90% of heat from stale air. Having made
the building envelope as efficient as possible, the sustainable energy strategy moves to the
consideration of how the energy needs of the house could be generated on-site, taking
account of localised climatic conditions and landscape features. Based on experience at the
Crossway Passive House the architect has established that energy production and demand
varies from day to night and from summer to winter. The challenge therefore is to maximise
efficiency at all times.

Maximise Opportunities for Solar Gains: Harnessing solar gains uses less energy. The
dwelling has been designed so the majority of glazing faces from east to west to maximise
solar gains through the day. On the south elevation high summer sun is controlled by glazing
set deep inside the structural opening to prevent overheating. A high thermal mass would
provide resilience to outside temperature fluctuations through the year. Due to the open
unshaded areas on the site and low visual impact, solar is favoured as the primary
renewable energy and would be integrated into the design via solar arrays mounted on the
existing agricultural buildings on site. A secondary source of energy would be Biomass,
providing the building with heat from a biomass boiler, the feed for which would be locally
sourced from the woodland management under the applicant’s ownership.

Integrated Renewable Technology to Provide a Reduced Energy Requirement: From
analysing the site the most appropriate renewable technologies for the proposed dwelling
are considered to be solar and biomass due to the large existing agricultural barn roofs and
large areas of woodland requiring ongoing management. By implementing the strategy the
architect estimates that the heat load of the proposed dwelling can be reduced by 70%
compared to a normal new dwelling.

The architect confirms that whilst the scheme is not seeking justification for the dwelling on
the basis of technological innovation, the design of the dwelling of exceptional quality is
indivisible from meeting the highest standards of sustainable design in architecture. It has
been confirmed that the mechanical and electrical design would undergo continual evolution
up to the point of ‘design fix’ and that planning conditions can be framed to ensure that the
aims and sustainability objectives are met.

In concluding on design and innovation, Officers consider that the current proposal has
responded well to the concerns of the Gloucestershire Design Review Panel in terms of the
revisions made. It is acknowledged that the question of outstanding design is a subjective
judgement, however on balance, having regard to the requirements set out in Paragraph 79
of the NPPF (see above), it is concluded that the proposed design does represent a form of
development which is considered to be truly outstanding, reflecting the highest standards in
architecture and would help to raise standards of design more generally in rural areas. The
incorporation of the highest standard of sustainable energy technology would contribute to it
meeting the highest standards in architecture. The rationale for the design is considered
demonstrate how the dwelling would be sensitive to the defining characteristics of the local
area and, subject to the proposal in all its aspects being delivered in accordance with the
submitted details, could significantly enhance the immediate setting.

66



7.20.

7.21.

7.22.

7.23.

7.24.

Removal of the agricultural tie

Planning permission of the erection of the existing dwelling at Buckland Manor Farm was
granted in 1975 (Ref. T.6206/D). Condition (b) attached to the permission stated: The
occupation of the dwelling shall be limited to persons employed or last employed solely or
mainly and locally in agriculture as defined by Section 290(1) of the Town and Country
Planning Act 1971, or in forestry and the dependants (which shall be taken to include a
widow or widower) of such. The applicant describes the farmstead as ‘not a functional
farmstead’ as it is farmed by the applicants as a side-line at an uneconomic level.

Policy AGR3 of the TBLP states that: “Applications for the removal of agricultural workers’
occupancy conditions will only be permitted where it is demonstrated that the dwelling is no
longer required to serve the existing or future needs of the agricultural community”. As such
dwellings are only permitted exceptionally the LPA will only permit the removal of such
conditions in exceptional circumstances. Such circumstances will only apply where the LPA
is satisfied that the retention of the restrictive occupancy serves no useful agricultural
purpose either now or in the future. Policy AGR4 of the emerging TBP states that the
removal of agricultural occupancy conditions will only be permitted where no longer serves a
need in connection with the agricultural holding, or nearby holding, and such needs are likely
to arise in the foreseeable future. Furthermore, it requires evidence that the dwelling has
been marketed for sale or rent with its occupancy restriction, at a realistic price for a
reasonable period and no interest has been shown for sale or rent.

The applicant has presented evidence that in this case the size of the estate and its value is
likely to rule out any realistic prospect of a qualifying occupier being able to afford to rent or
buy the property. Advice from a local estate agent confirms that the dwelling, associated out-
buildings used for residential purposes, in approximately 26 acres (10.5 hectares) of land
remote from other land holdings, which equates to the area in the immediate vicinity of the
dwelling, would be valued at £2 million, based on their knowledge of the market. The agent
confirms that they are unaware of any agricultural occupier who could afford the property
and meet the agricultural occupancy condition.

This principle has been previously accepted by Tewkesbury Borough in respect of the
removal of an agricultural tie at Windrush Hill, Hawling (ref: 15/01366/FUL). In this case the
value of the existing property and associated land was likely to rule out any realistic
possibility of the agricultural community being about to afford to buy or rent it. The applicant
also cites an appeal (ref: Bancroft Hall, Somerset — APP/R3325/A/06/2016472) in support of
this approach. The Inspector found that even where policies require marketing or evidence
that the property cannot be sold and no marketing or inadequate marketing has been
undertaken, there can still be sufficient evidence to establish that there is very limited
likelihood that the restricted occupancy dwelling could be sold or let to a qualifying occupier
to meet a local agricultural need.

In light of the information presented in relation to the value of the existing property and
previous planning decisions, Officers consider that there is very limited likelihood that the
agriculturally tied dwelling could be let or sold to a qualifying occupier to meet the existing or
future needs of the agricultural community. In that regard the retention of the restrictive
occupancy condition would serve no useful agricultural purpose now or in the future. On that
basis it is concluded that a reason for refusal could not be substantiated in the event of an
appeal. It is therefore not considered necessary to reimpose the agricultural tie on the
proposed new dwelling in this particular case.

67



7.25.

7.26.

7.27.

7.28.

7.29.

7.30.

Impact on the landscape of the Cotswolds AONB

Section 15 of the NPPF seeks to conserve and enhance the natural and local environment
by protecting and enhancing valued landscapes, sites of biodiversity or geological value and
soils (in a manner commensurate with their statutory status or identified quality in the
development plan), and recognising the intrinsic character and beauty of the countryside.
Great weight should be given to conserving and enhancing landscape and scenic beauty in
National Parks, the Broads and Areas of Outstanding Natural Beauty, which have the
highest status of protection in relation to these issues.

Policy SD7 is clear that all development proposals in the Cotswolds AONB will be required to
conserve and, where appropriate, enhance the landscape, scenic beauty, wildlife, cultural
heritage and other special qualities. Proposals will be required to be consistent with polices
set out in the Cotswolds AONB Management Plan.

The Cotswolds AONB Management Plan is a statutory plan which sets out the vision,
outcomes and policies for the management of the Cotswolds AONB for the period 2018-
2023. Policies CC7 and CC8 focus on Climate Change mitigation and adaptation. Policy
CE1 concerns landscape and states, proposals should have regard to, be compatible with
and reinforce landscape character, ... and proposals likely to impact on, or create change in,
the landscape of the Cotswolds AONB, should have regard to the scenic quality of the
location and its setting to ensure that views — including those into and out of the AONB — and
visual amenity are conserved and enhanced. Policy CE3 concerns local distinctiveness and
states innovative designs which are informed by local distinctiveness, character and scale
should be welcomed.

A Landscape Visual Assessment (LVA) has been submitted with the application which
undertakes a visual assessment from 10 representative viewpoints of varying distance within
a zone of theoretical visual influence. The Landscape Advisor has assessed the LVA and
undertaken a site visit of the perimeter of the site from local footpaths. She confirms that the
LVA has been set out broadly in line with the recommendations of the most up to date
landscape assessment guidance, that the photographic record set out is a fair representation
of the viewpoints that would be experienced from publicly accessible locations, using the
naked eye. The photographs were taken in winter, as recommended by the guidance, so the
views illustrated would be further filtered or screened by foliage in summer. The Landscape
Adviser confirms that the LVA is acceptable and it is available to view via the Public Access
website. A number of illustrative viewpoints will be included in the Officer presentation to
Planning Committee.

The LVA summarises the likely impacts of the development and confirms that, following the
assessment, refinements were made to the design of the proposal to further minimise visual
impact, e.g. the metal trim to roof and solar panels to the barn would have a matt finish to
prevent glint, the raised terraces around the dwelling would be species-rich grass rather than
formal shrubs, and window areas would be reduced areas to reduce the impact of lighting.

The conclusion of the LVA states that the proposals are to, replace the entirely
uncharacteristic managed open parkland with a proposal that integrates with the existing
features, will result in a naturalising of the existing grounds that will assist with anchoring the
new dwelling into its contextual landscape, reinforcing the rural character of the location and
will lead to significant enhancements to the immediate setting, as required by Para 79 of the
NPPF, as well as protect and enhance the character and visual amenity of the AONB
landscape. This has been confirmed by the feedback of the Design Review Panel, detailed
above.

68



7.31.

7.32.

7.33.

7.34.

The Landscape Advisor is satisfied that the findings of the appraisal illustrate that the site
would be capable of accommodating the proposed dwelling with little visual or physical
impact on the local or wider Cotswolds landscape and AONB; the site being hardly
discernible from nearly all publicly accessible viewpoints. Any potential impacts can be
further mitigated through implementing the proposed landscape scheme in accordance with
the Landscape Design Principles and lllustrative Masterplan. A fully detailed landscape
proposal for the site would be required as a pre-commencement condition to ensure that the
landscape principles and illustrative landscape masterplan proposals are implemented. This
would include the wider landscape proposals, removal of non-native species, a longer-term
landscape management plan and phasing plan.

The Cotswolds Conservation Board (CCB) has commented on the application. Whilst the
Board acknowledges that the development is of a high quality design and has the potential to
deliver a number of benefits, including naturalising the existing grounds, and that the visual
impacts on local footpaths, including the Cotswold Way, are likely to be limited they object to
the scheme commenting that it does not meet the requirement, under Paragraph 79 of the
NPPF, for the design to be of exceptional quality nor is it sufficiently sensitive to the defining
characteristics of the local area. In summary they raise concerns about the scale of the
building, local distinctiveness, tranquillity (reflection of sunlight) impact on dark skies (light
pollution) and visual impact.

The applicant has responded to the AONB Boards comments in an attempt to address their
concerns. Regarding local distinctiveness, i.e. that the dwelling does not incorporate
enough local materials or local vernacular building styles, the applicant explains that a sense
of time depth needs to be applied when considering sense of place. They state that it is
appropriate for a new dwelling of exceptional quality to be different to the long-established
settlement, but it can still have a very strong sense of place through a rigorous architectural
and landscape response. In this regard, the proposed dwelling could only exist in this
particular location and it has absolutely been developed in direct response to the site’s
defining characteristics, including the use of materials. The Board also considers that
farmsteads are the predominant settlement type on hillsides of the Escarpment and that the
change of use to an individual building (through the removal of the agricultural tie) would not
be characteristic. The applicant points out that whilst farmsteads are identified as
‘predominant’ the Landscape Character Type highlights localised variations including that
individual dwellings are also evident. The introduction of a single dwelling would not change
the predominance of farmsteads in the landscape and the agricultural buildings associated
with the holding would remain.

Regarding, the Board’s concerns about the impact of the proposed dwelling on tranquillity,
the Board acknowledges that whilst the LVA takes a ‘positive step’ in relation to
consideration of glint and glare from proposed materials, it does not address concerns
regarding the potential reflection of sunlight from the multiple windows. The applicant states
that the LVA demonstrates that the site is barely discernible from representative viewpoints
and clarifies that the surrounding mature vegetation combined with deep roof overhangs,
would also restrict the potential for glint and glare. The applicant has also subsequently
amended the design to incorporate more timber fins (louvres) over some of the glazed
openings, which further reduces the potential for glint/glare. Regarding concerns that the
multiple windows would cause light pollution which may adversely affect the dark skies of the
AONB and visual receptors, the applicant states (as set out above) that the visual receptors
are few due to vegetation/topography and the extent of change would be very limited. As
described, the design addresses night sky issues: the overhang of the roof and the use of
timber fins limits the extent of sky glow, there are no skylights or external lighting proposed.
Any external lighting could be controlled through condition.

69



7.35.

7.36.

7.37.

7.38.

In relation to visual impact the Board raised concerns that receptors in Buckland village, are
not included in the representative viewpoints. The applicant confirms that due to tree cover
looking up the valley between the village and the site, it would be heavily and effectively
screened resulting in no significant visual impact from any private or public receptors in the
village. Proposed tree planting within the site as part of the landscape masterplan would
increase the level of screening over time. The Board also suggests potential impacts from
the Winchcombe Way to the south (viewpoint 3) and Cotswold Way. The Board considers
the impact on the Winchcombe Way could be more significant due to the increased scale of
the building and its use of glazing. The applicant confirms the height of the building (which is
no greater than the existing dwelling) has been tested together with its appearance. The
viewpoint photograph, taken in winter, confirms no more of the proposed building would be
seen of the new dwelling due to intervening woodland and topography. In terms of the
Cotswold Way the Board is concerned that the agricultural barns that screen the site from
the route could be taken down following the removal of the agricultural tie. The applicant
confirms that intervening woodland planting is proposed to the north of the dwelling which
would effectively screen it from view, in addition to the screening offered by natural
topography. However, since the barns are a recent addition to the holding, used in
connection with the agricultural business, would host the PV panels for electricity generation
for the dwelling, and a further adjacent barn will be erected as part of this proposal to provide
a bat roost, their removal is an unlikely prospect.

Overall, it is considered that the proposal would not result in a prominent form of
development within the landscape, with views of the site being extremely limited from
publicly accessible receptors and proposed landscape enhancements providing additional
screening. It is evident that the proposed design has been carefully conceived with regard to
landscape and visual impact to ensure that the building sits harmoniously within the
topography of the site and is sympathetic to the landscape context and characteristics. Given
this rigorous approach and the quality of the proposed design it is considered that the impact
of the proposal on the AONB would not be harmful but would be sensitive to the areas
defining characteristics and enhance the immediate setting of the area.

Biodiversity

Section 15 of the NPPF seeks to, inter alia, protect and enhance, sites of biodiversity or
geological value and soils (in a manner commensurate with their statutory status or identified
quality in the development plan), and minimise impacts on and provide net gains for
biodiversity, including by establishing coherent ecological networks that are more resilient to
current and future pressures. JCS Policy SD9 states that the biodiversity resource of the
area will be protected and enhanced in order to establish and reinforce resilient ecological
networks, including the safeguarding of protected species in accordance with the law. This is
reiterated in Policy NAT1 of the emerging TBP, which also seeks proposals to deliver a
biodiversity net gain.

The application is accompanied by an Ecological Appraisal which sets out the results of a
habitat survey. As a result of the proposals it concludes that there are not considered to be
any significant adverse effects on any statutory and non-statutory sites of nature
conservation interest. The development proposal includes the demolition of buildings on the
site which would result in the loss of a Brown Long-eared bat maternity roost, along with the
occasional roosts for Common Pipistrelle, Soprano Pipistrelle and Brandt's bats, which are
within the main house. Accordingly, a Natural England licence would be necessary before
work can commence on demolition. In order to compensate for the loss of the maternity roost
and occasional roosts, a new ‘bat barn’ is proposed to be erected adjacent to existing barns
within the site to create replacement roosts for these species. New bat boxes would be
erected within the site and new areas of naturalised planting would provide enhanced

70



7.39.

7.40.

7.41.

7.42.

7.43.

7.44.

7.45.

foraging and navigational opportunities. No external lighting is proposed and if required can
be controlled by condition.

As described, the woodland, hedgerows, scattered scrub, streams and ponds within the site
would be retained and enhanced, which would provide opportunities for birds. Birdboxes
would be erected within the site and safeguards employed during vegetation clearance.

Two off-site Badger setts were recorded during surveys and would not be impacted, but
contractors would be briefed regarding the presence of Badgers and any working
requirements highlighted. Ponds on the site are not suitable for Great Crested Newts and it
is considered they are not present on site. The rough grassland, hedgerows and woodland
offer suitable habitat for reptiles and are to be retained. If any suitable reptile habitat is
removed a habitat manipulation exercise is recommended prior to removal.

The Ecological Adviser has considered the ecological assessment report including the
proposed mitigation/ compensation/ enhancement measures. The bat mitigation is
considered acceptable but the Ecological Assessment needs to be updated, prior to
determination of the application, to reflect the new bat barn that is proposed and the
inclusion of what supervision would take place during the demolition of the building hosting
the existing bat roosts. The applicant is currently arranging an updated report, which it is
anticipated will be complete and submitted by the date of Planning Committee. All other
measures proposed in the ecological report in relation to other species are considered
acceptable. The Ecological Adviser raises no objections subject to conditions.

Access and highway safety

Paragraph 109 of the NPPF states that development should only be prevented or refused on
highways grounds if there would be an unacceptable impact on highway safety, or the
residual cumulative impacts on the road network would be severe. JCS Policy INF1
reiterates this objective and is clear that developers should provide safe and accessible
connections to the transport network

The development proposal seeks to use the existing access and approach road from the
west of the site. The proposed dwelling would not result in an increase in traffic which would
significantly impact on the local highway network and the proposed access and parking
arrangements are commensurate with a new dwelling.

Having considered the information submitted as part of the application, the Highway
Authority in March 2020 recommended no highway objection be raised and no conditions be
attached. However, in the intervening period the Highway Authority has taken a different
stance to their consideration of remote residential sites based on grounds of sustainability. In
January 2021 an objection was therefore received on the grounds that the proposed
development would be located in an unsustainable location and occupiers would be reliant
on the private car for their daily needs for employment, schools, health and recreation and
shopping, which would be at variance with paragraphs 108 and 110 of the NPPF.

The revised position of the Highway Authority is understood but it is considered that, in this
case, the sustainability of the location must be balanced against other planning matters.
Importantly the principle of the residential use of the site by a single dwelling has been long-
established and the replacement of the existing dwelling with a new dwelling does not effect
any change to that position. Indeed, adopted and emerging local development plan policy
provides for replacement dwellings in certain circumstances (Polices HOU7 and RES9 refer),
regardless of the sustainability principles of their location. Furthermore, Paragraph 70 of the
NPPF makes provision for the development of isolated homes in the countryside in a number
of exceptional circumstances, recognising that this does not satisfy the objectives of
sustainable development but does meet other important planning objectives. As set out

71



7.46.

1.47.

7.48.

7.49.

7.50.

7.51.

7.52.

above, Officers consider this development meets the tests of a dwelling that is of an
exceptional quality design in accordance with Paragraph 79(e). In this instance it is therefore
considered that there are overriding planning reasons for permitting the development
contrary to the Highway Authority’s objection.

The Public Rights of Way Officer also confirms that the development does not appear to
affect any public right of way, however if there is any suggestion that it will, whether through
a need for a temporary closure or permanent diversion then contact should be made with the
PROW team at the earliest opportunity.

Concerns have been raised by the Parish Council and local residents of the impact on the
local road network of the construction phase of the development. Issues raised include the
impact of heavy goods vehicles travelling through the village, damage to roads and verges,
difficulties of large vehicles negotiating the narrow network, and conflict with other road
users, notably pedestrians, cyclists and horse riders. Some of these issues could potentially
be addressed through a Construction Management Plan (CMP). The Highway Authority was
reconsulted on the issues raised by local residents. The Highways Officer confirmed that,
whilst they understand the reasoning for a CMP, they do not consider that a condition is
necessary to make the development acceptable in planning terms. There are no records
near the vicinity of the site that indicate any extant highway safety issues that would be
exacerbated by the proposal and the nature of the development is not conducive to a severe
cumulative impact on the road network. Nonetheless, the applicant has indicated they would
accept a planning condition for a CMP to address the concerns of local residents and a
condition is therefore recommended.

Heritage assets

JCS Policy SD8 concerns the historic environment, stating that development should make a
positive contribution to local character and distinctiveness, having regard to valued and
distinctive elements of the historic environment.

The County Archaeologist has been consulted and confirms that, having checked the site
against the County Historic Environment Record, there is no significant underground
archaeology know at the location and it is considered that the development proposal has low
potential for any adverse impact on archaeological remains. No further archaeological
investigation or recording is therefore recommended.

The remaining heritage assets (listed buildings, Buckland Conservation Area) are located
some distance from the site. As described above there would be little inter-visibility between
the site and local receptors. On this basis it is considered that there would be no
unacceptable adverse impact from the development proposal on local heritage assets in the
local vicinity.

Drainage and flood risk

JCS Policy INF2 set out how development proposals must avoid areas at risk of flooding in

accordance with a risk-bases sequential approach. Proposals must not increase the level of
risk to the safety of occupiers of a site, the local community or the wider environment either
on the site or elsewhere.

The site is located in Flood Zone 1 which is considered the most suitable zone for residential
development in terms of flood risk. An indicative SuDs strategy has been submitted which
includes concepts such as: blue roofs, swales and attenuation ponds to manage surface
water runoff from the site. A Packaged Water Treatment Plant is proposed for foul
discharges.

72



7.53. The Drainage Adviser has commented on the proposal and considers that the indicative
strategy could assist in controlling flashy run-off from the Combe into Buckland and raises no
objections. However, a detailed strategy would need to be submitted prior to the
commencement of development and a suitable condition is proposed.

Residential amenity

7.54. JCS Policy SD14 concerns health and environmental quality, it sets out how high-quality
development should protect and seek to protect environmental quality. Development should
no create or exacerbate conditions that could impact on human health or cause health
inequality.

7.55. The Environmental Health Officer confirms no objection on the grounds of noise impacting
on or emanating from the proposed dwelling which is remote from other residential
development in the locality. In respect of any potential lighting of the site it is recommended
that any lighting should comply with the Institute of Lighting Professionals Guidance. In
respect of nuisance arising from noise, vibration and dust emissions during the demolition
and construction phases the applicant is recommended the applicant complies with the
Worcestershire Regulatory Services Guidance.

7.56. Concerns have been raised by local residents concerning noise, disturbance and vibration
that could arise from construction traffic passing through Buckland village in connection with
the development. As detailed above, a condition for a CMP is recommended. It is further
recommended that an informative note be included highlighting the WRS guidance to
minimise any nuisance.

8.0 CONCLUSION AND RECOMMENDATION

8.1. In light of the above, it is considered that the proposed development represents, on balance,
a development of exceptional quality. It is considered that the proposal complies with the
tests set out in paragraph 79(e) of the NPPF in that it is truly outstanding, reflecting the
highest standards in architecture, and would help raise the standards of design more
generally in rural areas. It is also concluded that the proposal would not unduly impact on the
landscape character of the AONB and the proposed landscape enhancement measures
would significantly enhance the site’s immediate setting and be sensitive to the defining
characteristics of the local area. For the reasons explained above, it is also not considered
necessary to retain an agricultural tie on the site. The proposal is recommended for
Delegated Permit, subject to the receipt of an updated Ecological Report and any
consequential updating of conditions.

CONDITIONS:

1. The works hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of five years from the date of
this consent.

Reason: Required to be imposed by Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 as
amended by Section 51 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004.

2. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the following
approved documents:

Site Location Plan, dated 03/02/2020

Proposed Site Plan, including definition of residential curtilage, 5.2.1.1C, dated 01/12/2020
Proposed Elevation South, 5.2.11.1B, dated 01/09/2020

Proposed Elevation West, 5.2.9.1B, dated 01/09/2020

73



Proposed Elevation North 5.2.13.1B, dated 01/09/2020

Proposed Elevation East, 5.2.15.1BA, dated 01/09/2020

Proposed Roof Plan, 5.2.3.1B, dated 01/09/2020

Proposed Basement Plan, 5.2.4.1B dated 01/09/2020

Proposed Ground Floor Plan, 5.2.5.1B, dated 01/09/2020

Proposed First Floor Plan, 5.2.6.1B, dated 01/09/2020

Proposed Section through main hall/sunroom, 5.2.19.1B dated 01/09/2020

Proposed Section through snug and master bed, 5.2.21.1B, dated 01/09/2020

Proposed Section through swimming pool and basement,5.2.24.1B, dated 01/09/2020
Proposed Section through under croft garage, 5.2.25.1B, dated 01/09/2020

Proposed Section through terraces, 5.2.26.1B, dated 01/09/2020

Bat Barn External Specifications Rev A, dated 13/11/2020

Bat Barn Internal Specifications Rev A, dated 13/11/2020

Bat Barn Location Plan Rev A, dated 13/11/2020

Bat Barn Planning Drawings: Proposed Elevations, Floor, Roof and Section Plan, dated
01/12/2020

Topographical Survey, 3205/2/R1, dated 04/03/2020

Existing Site Plan, 3.1.1A, dated 02/03/2020

Arboricultural Impact Assessment & Tree Protection Plan, for trees at Buckland Manor Farm,
prepared by Nick Baxter BSc (Hons) TechArborA Arboricultural Consultant, report dated 14"
January 2020

Arboricultural Method Statement, for development works at Buckland Manor Farm, prepared
by Nick Baxter BSc (Hons) TechArborA Arboricultural Consultant, report dated 14™ January
2020

Ecological Assessment, Buckland Manor Farm, by Ecology Solutions, dated January 2020.

Except where these may be modified by any other conditions attached to this permission.

Reason: To ensure that the development is carried out in accordance with the approved plans.

3.

Notwithstanding the submitted details, no development shall take place until samples of all
external facing and roofing materials have been submitted to and been approved in writing by
the Local Planning Authority. The development shall be carried out in accordance with the
approved samples.

Reason: To ensure that the proposed development is in keeping with the existing dwelling.

4.

Notwithstanding the provisions of Schedule 2, Part 1, Classes A, B, C, E, F and G of the Town
and Country Planning (General Permitted Development) Order 2015 (or any order revoking, re-
enacting or modifying that Order), no development shall take place other than that expressly
authorised by this permission.

Reason: In the interests of visual amenity and the character and appearance of the area.

5.

Notwithstanding the submitted details, no development shall take place until a fully detailed
Landscape Plan for the site has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local
Planning Authority and these works shall be carried out as approved. The landscape plan shall
accord with and incorporate the principles of the lllustrative Masterplan proposals set out in the
Architectural and Landscape Proposals (Design and Access Statement), Buckland Manor Farm,
dated January 2020. The Landscape Plan shall include, inter alia, proposed finished levels or
contours; means of enclosure; hard surfacing materials; planting plans, specifications and
schedules, the wider landscape proposals (such as the indicated removal of non-native species
within the existing tree belt along the nearby PROWS) and details of tree and hedgerow
protection for existing planting, to be retained, in accordance with BS5837: Trees in relation to
construction. If the Landscape Plan is to be phased over several years a phasing plan shall be

74



provided as an integral part of the plan, to include proposed planting dates.

All approved tree and hedge protection measures shall be in place prior to the commencement
of the development shall be retained thereafter until the development is complete. Any trees or
plants that, within a period of five years after planting, are removed, die or become, in the
opinion of the Local Planning Authority, seriously damaged or defective, shall be replaced as
soon as is reasonably practicable with others of species, size and number as originally
approved, unless the Local Planning Authority gives its written consent to any variation.

Reason: In the interests of visual amenity and the character and appearance of the area.

6. A Landscape Management Plan, including long term design objectives, management
responsibilities and maintenance schedules for all landscape areas that follows the principles
set out within document Architectural and Landscape Proposals (Design and Access
Statement), Buckland Manor Farm, dated January 2020 and the Landscape Plan approved
under Condition 5 of this permission, shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local
Planning Authority prior to the first occupation of the dwelling. The Landscape Management
Plan shall be carried out as approved.

Reason: In the interests of visual amenity and the character and appearance of the area.

7. No external lighting whatsoever shall be erected at the site without the express prior written
consent of the Local Planning Authority.

Reason: In the interests of visual amenity and the character of the area and to ensure proper
provision is made to safeguard protected species and their habitats.

8. The development hereby permitted shall strictly adhere to the mitigation detailed within the
Ecological Assessment (Ecology Solutions, January 2020), including measures to safeguard
badgers that may use the site, the safeguarding of the existing habitats on site, the sensitive
timing for the removal of vegetation to be outside of bird nesting season and habitat
manipulation for the protection of reptiles.

Reason: To ensure proper provision is made to safeguard protected species and their habitats.

9. A Landscape and Ecological Management Plan (LEMP) shall be submitted to and approved in
writing by the Local Planning Authority prior to commencement of development. The LEMP
shall expand upon the information recommended within the ecology report, setting out the
ongoing monitoring and management of the site, and timescales of implementation. A plan
detailing all ecological enhancements shall also be included. The LEMP shall be implemented
as approved.

Reason: To ensure proper provision is made to safeguard protected species and their habitats.

10. No building works hereby permitted shall be commenced until a surface water drainage strategy
has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The information
submitted shall be in accordance with the principles set out in the lllustrative SuDs Strategy
Plan DLA.1925.L..001.46.S04 and shall be implemented as approved prior the occupation of the
dwelling. The submitted details shall:

i. provide information about the design storm period and intensity, the method employed to
delay and control the surface water discharged from the site and the measures taken to prevent
pollution of the receiving groundwater and/or surface waters;

ii. include a timetable for its implementation; and

75



ii. provide a management and maintenance plan for the lifetime of the development which shall
include the arrangements for adoption by any public authority or statutory undertaker and any
other arrangements to secure the operation of the scheme throughout its lifetime.

Reason: To ensure that the development is provided with a satisfactory means of drainage as well
as to reduce the risk of creating or exacerbating a flooding problem and to minimise the risk of
pollution for the lifetime of the development.

11. The heat and power demands of the dwelling shall be met through the use of technologies as
recommended at Section 5.6 of the Architectural and Landscape Proposals Document (Design
and Access Statement), dated January 2020, full details of which shall be first submitted to and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority prior to the commencement of development.
All systems so approved shall be fully functional prior to full occupation of the dwelling.

Reason: To ensure that the aims and sustainability objectives of the development are met and
implemented as proposed.

12. No development shall take place until details of existing and proposed ground levels and
ground floor slab levels of the buildings hereby permitted, relative to Ordnance Datum Newlyn,
have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The
development shall thereafter be carried out in accordance with the approved details.

Reason: In the interests of visual amenity and the character and appearance of the area.

13. No development shall take place, including any works of demolition, until a Construction
Method Statement has been submitted to, and approved in writing by the Local Planning
Authority. The approved Statement shall be adhered to throughout the construction period. The
Statement shall:
i. Specify the type and number of vehicles;

ii. Provide for the parking of vehicles of site operatives and visitors;

iii. Provide for the loading and unloading of plant and materials;

iv. Provide for the storage of plant and materials used in constructing the development;
v. Provide for wheel washing facilities;

vi. Specify the intended hours of construction operations;

vii. Specify measures to control the emission of dust and dirt during construction.

Reason: To reduce the potential impact on the public highway and accommodate the efficient
delivery of goods and supplies.

INFORMATIVES:

1. In accordance with the requirements of the NPPF the Local Planning Authority has sought to
determine the application in a positive and proactive manner by offering pre-application advice,
publishing guidance to assist the applicant, and publishing to the council's website relevant
information received during the consideration of the application thus enabling the applicant to be
kept informed as to how the case was proceeding.

2. Objective A of the illustrative SuDS strategy describes modifications to the existing watercourse.
The developer is advised that any such works would require consent under the 1991 Land
Drainage Act and that such a consent is additional to the planning consent. Details of how to
gain such a consent can be found at: https://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/planning-and-
environment/flood-risk-management/land-drainage-consent/

3. Should any external lighting be required at a future date, the developer’s attention is drawn to
the Lighting Professionals Guidance 01/20 Guidance notes for the reduction of obtrusive light.

76


https://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/planning-and-environment/flood-risk-management/land-drainage-consent/
https://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/planning-and-environment/flood-risk-management/land-drainage-consent/

Any such lighting strategy should also incorporate the following matters, inter alia, to minimise
the impact of external lighting on ecology and dark skies: (1) identify those areas/features on site
that are particularly sensitive for bats and hedgehogs and that are likely to cause disturbance in
or around their breeding sites and resting places or along important routes used to access key
areas of their territory, for example, for foraging; and (2) show how and where external lighting
will be installed (through the provision of appropriate lighting contour plans and technical
specifications) so that it can be clearly demonstrated that areas to be lit will not disturb or
prevent the above species using their territory or having access to their breeding sites and
resting places

4. To minimise any nuisance from noise, vibration and dust emissions during the demolition and
construction phases the developer’s attention is drawn to ‘Worcestershire Regulatory Services
(WRS) Code of Best Practice for Demolition and Construction Sites, 2" Edition, September
2020'.

5. Due to the offsite Badger setts identified and recorded and the mobility of Badgers, a pre-
commencement site check for evidence of Badgers should be carried out by a suitably qualified
person prior to the commencement of development.

77






1:2500)

chapter 1.2 Site Location Plan 1:5000)

chapter 1.3 Site Location Plan
Landscape Architects drawings for

Iandscape details.
[ . . .
_.,, ’_’// . \
4 L A
JNESRS
/_ DAVIES i

(for full extent see
(for full extent see
Refer to Davies

— Application Area
Note:

) ____/ — Extent of Applicant Ownership

BUCKLAND MANOR FARM

P

1:1000
lue +115.92m).

)

100
All4e¥éts are in metres related to ordnance datum located on Burhill House (v

5.2.1.1C PROPOSED SITE PLAN

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

1:1000 AT A3



‘01 08 SUKB] 104 "PT) BINGIYDNY STHWEH &

S 190311 HIHY

3dVISANVYIS3IAVA

dOdIY

NHVY4 HONVIN ANV IXONG

(W L L+ DNjEA) D5N0H
[N UG PRIEDO] WNJED BIUEURID O} PSIE(SI SBNBL I BIE S8AB| [y

“siEap adeaspus 1) sbumeip s12auyary adesspueT saimeq of 1ojoy
oY

SMOpUIM, PUE 51000 pezei sdil §
Suippen) mop Ang v

nuayD ys)Bug woy suld sequil B

SO MOPU PUT BUIPPe|D) (Bl BTuoug 2
BUDIS POMSIOD L

HEUEIEY

2dl LL'e'S
NOLLYWHOSN| TYNDILIOaY
NOLIYAZT13 HLNOS 0350404d



103 08 SULB] 404 "PT) BINDVYINY STHMEH G
@Jnj}josellyole

$ 1232311 HDJEY e,
@W_Mﬁ% Idvosanvisaiava  [EESJEIR

SMOPUI PUE 51000 POz dL §

(W26 '5LL+ onjes) 9snoy Buipperg (mop Aug v

[N U0 PRIED0| WD BIURURLO O} PRI 38U U BIE S8AB| Iy Inuzay) ysBug woy suld sequi E
N SO MU PuT BUIPPeID) (Bl BZuug E

“agEep TS9N 0] 8j0H BUDIS POMSIOD L
N SeuSlen

ws dL'6'¢'S
NOLLYWHDSNI TYNDILIOaY
NOILYAZTE LS3IM 0350404d




107 08 LU J04 "PT] BINIDAYYDHY SIMMEH &
04N1098311YOJB o) 531 4o vw

@% IdvISaNvIsaiAva (S IEIRN ST

SMOPUIM, PUE 1000 PaZE0 Sdil 5

“(WZE'L L+ BRIRA) BSNOH Buippe) (WO Ang v

[I4INE UD PSIEDG] WNJEP BIURUMID O] PSIEIEI S2ASU U] BIE H3A8| [y isay?) usBug woy suld squ
SaLEIY MopU, pue Buippeld Elew 1ol 2

“SHRIOP dEISPUR 40} SEUMBID SI2GYDNY AORISPUET SHNEQ OF J0jaY BUDIS PIOMSIOD “L
ON SEEE

NHVYH HONVIN ANV 1XONd sitmedse d b €1°¢’S



‘04 ofi S18) 404 "PI BUINIBNYDIY SBHMEH &
w_sﬁom:_co_w S 1033 L1 H J38Y

@W_MMH_%% JdVOSANVIS3IAVA m—HgP,:L

.owgl wp
L e N B N R E e S E |

SMOPUL PUE 1000 pozeiD) aidil §

(W2 GL L+ OnjEA) dsnoy Buippe)) (oW Ang v

[N U0 PRIED0| WD BIURURLO O} PRI 38U U BIE S8AB| Iy Inuzay) ysBug woy suld sequi E
SOWRIY MOPUIM PUT BUIPPEID (19N BZU0IE 2

“agEep 10} sBumeip 1 SDINEQ O} 100K BUOIS PIOMEICD) L
oY FEuSEY

NHVYH HONVIN ANV 1XONd wedimaasd LGl 'C'S



Agenda Item 5f

TEWKESBURY BOROUGH COUNCIL — DEVELOPMENT CONTROL

Committee:

Date:

Site Location:

Planning
19 January 2021

Copper Close
Bushcombe Lane

Woodmancote
Cheltenham
Gloucestershire
GL52 9QJ
Application No: 20/00240/FUL
Ward: Cleeve Hill
Parish: Woodmancote
Proposal: Section 73 application for the variation of conditions 3,4,5,7 and 8
of planning permission 12/01190/FUL to allow changes to the
boundary treatments and to the design and footprint of plot 1.
Report by: Dawn Lloyd
Appendices: Site location plan

Recommendation:

1.0

11

1.2

13

Proposed Streetscene and Site Plan
Proposed Elevations and Floor Plans Plot 1
Proposed Elevations and Floor Plans Plot 2
Section Plan

Permit

SITE DESCRIPTION AND PROPOSAL

The site is on the corner of Bushcombe Lane and Aesops Orchard, Woodmancote. Aesops
Orchard is a cul-de-sac characterised by detached bungalows. The dwellings fronting
Bushcombe Lane comprise of a mix of detached dwellings of differing style. Brook Cottage a
Grade Il Listed Building is opposite to the site on Bushcombe Lane. Bushcombe Lane
slopes down from east to west and consequently the application site occupies higher ground
than the adjacent property 'Half Acre'. The site is located close but outside the Cotswold
AONB.

Planning permission (06/00399/FUL) was granted for three two storey dwellings on the site
two of which (plots 2 and 3) have been constructed.

The current application proposes to amend the design of ‘plot 1' (not yet commenced). The
proposed amendments would be to slightly increase the footprint of the dwelling (resulting in
a slightly greater depth and width) and addition of a further rear gable. The amendment
would result in an additional (fifth) bedroom. (See previously approved plans and
proposed plans).

84



1.4 The application also proposes a solid brick wall (previously approved as a wooden fence) for
the intervening boundary between plots 1 and 2. This is retrospective in part as the rear
boundary for plot 1 and the side boundary for plot 2 has been implemented. Portuguese
Laurels have been planted adjacent to the post and rail fence to the rear of plot 1 and in front
of the Cotswold stone wall on the side boundary to plot 2. A revised and accurate block plan
and section plan to clarify the exact location of the proposed and implemented boundary
treatment has been requested (An up-date will be provided at Committee).

2.0 RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY

Application Proposal Decision Decision
Number Date
T.2049/A Outline application for a bungalow. PERMIT 10.07.1967
T.2049/A/AP Bungalow and garage. APPROV 03.10.1967
03/00651/FUL Erection of a dwelling and construction of a new REF 03.07.2003

vehicular access

03/01142/FUL Erection of a bungalow and construction of a new | PER 29.09.2003
vehicular access (revised scheme).

06/00399/FUL Erection of 3 detached houses and construction of | PER 28.11.2006
new access (includes demolition of Copper Close
and closure of existing access off Bushcombe
Lane).

12/00336/FUL Construction of two detached dwellings (Revised REF 08.08.2012
scheme to development granted under planning
ref: 06/00399/FUL).

12/01190/FUL Construction of 2 detached dwellings (Revised PER 07.02.2013
Scheme to 12/00336/FUL).

16/00088/MINOR | Construction of 2 detached dwellings (Revised GRANT 12.12.2016
Scheme to 12/00336/FUL).

3.0 RELEVANT POLICY

3.1 The following planning guidance and policies are relevant to the consideration of this
application:
National guidance
National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) and the National Planning Practice Guidance
(NPPG).
Gloucester, Cheltenham and Tewkesbury Joint Core Strategy (JCS) - Adopted 11
December 2017
Policies: SD4, SD6, SD8, SD14.

85



4.0

4.1

4.2

4.3

5.0

5.1

Tewkesbury Borough Local Plan to 2011 - March 2006 (TBLP)
Policies: HOUS.

Tewkesbury Borough Plan 2011-2031 — Pre-Submission Version (October 2019)
Policies: RES2 Settlement Boundaries, RES5 New Housing Development.

Human Rights Act 1998 - Article 8 (Right to Respect for Private and Family Life).

The First Protocol, Article 1 (Protection of Property).

CONSULTATIONS

Woodmancote Parish Council — Objection. The dwelling is too large and out of keeping
with other properties in the location and has a detrimental impact on the grade Il listed thatch
properties. The proposed rear brick wall should be Cotswold Stone to be in keeping with the

character of the area.

Comments on amended plans — Objection due to size and scale and impact on the street
scene.

If the application is permitted WPC would like to see the following and make comments
accordingly:

-remove permitted development rights and in any other way prevent further
extensions/conservatories that will over develop the plot.

- concerned that the extensive hard standing at the front will only increase the impact on the
street scene with vehicles parked in front of the listed building. We would like to see this area
smaller and with a narrower entrance to deter owners with vans. We would also like to see
permeable loose shingle rather than a hard surface for SUDs.

- No patio — Suds compliant hardscapes only in the rear garden.

- The suburban scene could be mitigated out front with a mature native tree strategically
placed between plot 1 and 2 to break up the pattern. And perhaps some smaller trees behind
the front wall similar to the ones up Apple Tree Close. All with 5 year maintenance plan.
Highway Authority- no objection

Amended plans were submitted on 11 November 2020 which indicated the boundary
treatments and planting on the site. The side extension to plot 1 has reduced in width and
the rear gables have been amended.

Conservation Officer - No objection.

PUBLICITY AND REPRESENTATIONS

Five neighbour letters of objection received (in summary)

Footprint too large for the available plot.

The design has lost its cottage style with the rear gables.

86



5.2

5.3

6.0

6.1

6.2

6.3

6.4

7.0

7.1

7.2

The enlarged width the dwelling appears squeezed between adjacent properties and
detrimental to streetscene due to its height and size.

It will be too close to Half Acre Cottage, overshadow it, windows on side elevation impact
privacy and impact its setting.

Impact the setting of listed Brook Cottage which is opposite, dwelling will overlook the
cottage.

Five bedroomed house would mean more parked cars, inadequate parking provision

The application has been publicised through the posting of a site notice for a period of 21
days.

The amended plans were advertised for an additional 14 day period. An update will be
provided to the committee on additional comments received.

POLICY CONTEXT

Section 38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 requires that proposals be
determined in accordance with the development plan unless material considerations indicate
otherwise. Section 70(2) of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 provides that the Local
Planning Authority shall have regard to the provisions of the Development Plan, so far as
material to the application, and to any other material considerations.

The Development Plan currently comprises the Joint Core Strategy (JCS) (2017), saved
policies of the Tewkesbury Borough Local Plan to 2011 (March 2006) (TBLP), and a number
of ‘'made’ Neighbourhood Development Plans.

The Pre-Submission Tewkesbury Borough Plan was submitted to the Secretary of State for
Housing, Communities and Local Government on 18 May 2020 for examination. On the
basis of the stage of preparation it has reached it is considered that the plan can be afforded
at least moderate weight. However, the weight to be attributed to individual policies will be
subject to the extent to which there are unresolved objections (the less significant the
unresolved objections, the greater the weight that may be given) and their degree of
consistency with the NPPF (the closer the policies to those in the NPPF the greater the
weight that may be given).

The relevant policies are set out in the appropriate sections of this report.

ANALYSIS

The main issues to be considered in this application are: the size and design of the proposal
and its impact on the character and appearance of the area and street scene; the impact on
the residential amenity of neighbouring properties; on highway safety; and on the setting of

nearby listed buildings.

Design and layout

The NPPF attaches great importance to the design of the built environment. Section 12
states that the creation of high quality buildings and places is fundamental to what the
planning and development process should achieve. Policy SD4 of the JCS (December 2017)
also requires high-quality and well-thought-out design. Policy RES5 of the emerging Local
Plan similarly requires high quality development for new housing development.

87



7.3

7.4

7.5

7.6

7.7

7.8

7.9

Dwelling

The amended design would increase the floor area and result in a slightly greater depth and
width than the previous approval adding an additional bedroom (resulting in a five
bedroomed dwelling). The front elevation remains similar in design the eave and ridge height
as the previous approval. The rear elevation would have three projecting gables rather than
two of the previously approval. There are would be no windows on the side elevation facing
Half Acre Cottage. The concerns of the Parish Council are noted, however, there are
properties of various ages, types and designs in the vicinity of the site. The slight increase in
footprint and the additional rear gable is not considered inappropriate in terms of design or
harmful to the character of area.

Boundaries

The rear boundary of plot 1 and its side boundary with plot 2 is not visible from the public
realm. However, the boundary with Aesops Orchard is in a prominent corner at the entrance
to the road and is opposite the Yew Tree Cottage a non-designated heritage asset and
Brook Cottage a Listed Building. The Cotswold stone wall has been implemented due to the
difference in ground levels is only visible in part from Aesops Orchard. The stone wall is
more visually prominent from Bushcombe Lane. Laurel hedging is evident on the boundary
of properties in the vicinity of the site. However, Laurel hedging can grow quite tall and it will
require maintenance to restrict the height of the hedge and to prevent it obstructing the
public footpath the Applicant has agreed to a condition for a programme of hedge
maintenance. Given the constraints of the site it is considered that the boundary treatment
would be appropriate to the character of the area in accordance with policy SD6.

Due to difference in ground levels from the footpath on Aesops Orchard and the ground level
of plot 2 only a small amount of stone wall is visible from the footpath. There is little room for
planting inside the wall on this side boundary and planting is required for privacy and safety.

Residential amenity

The rear elevation of plot 1 would have first floor windows serving two bedrooms and a
bathroom. There is over 10 metres to the rear boundary which appropriate separation
distance in terms overlooking. There would be oblique views from the bedroom closest to
plot 2. The impact in terms of overlooking is considered not to be unacceptable and the
proposal as amended complies with Policy SD14 in this regard.

Landscape and setting of the AONB

The site does not lie within the AONB which is immediately to the north of the site but in
close proximity. JCS policy SD7 all development proposals in or within the setting of the
Cotswold AONB will be required to conserve and where appropriate enhance its landscape,
scenic beauty, cultural heritage and other special qualities wildlife and policy SD6 considers
that proposal should have regard to local distinctiveness.

The amended design of the dwelling is very similar to the original design, the main difference
being the introduction of a third gable to the rear elevation. This would not be prominent or
particularly visible from views outside of the rear garden. The reinstated Cotswold stone wall
on Bushcombe Lane provides a boundary treatment appropriate to the setting AONB. The
Portuguese Laurel hedge would be more prominent from Aesops Orchard which consist of
mostly recent development. Laurels are evident on boundaries in the vicinity of the site.
Therefore, the proposal is considered acceptable in terms of its impact on the landscape and
setting of the AONB.

Heritage assets

The site is opposite the listed Brook Cottage and in close proximity to the non-designated
heritage asset of Yew Tree Cottage. Although slightly larger in scale the dimensions of
dwelling of plot 1 is not considered to be of significant harm to the setting of heritage assets.

88



7.10 The Conservation Officer was consulted with regard to the impact of the proposed boundary
treatment on the historic character of the area and the associated heritage assets - in
particular Brook Cottage and Yew tree cottage. The Conservation Officer has no objection to
amended plans.

Access and highway safety

7.11 JCS policy INF 1 considers development safe and efficient access to the highway network is
provided all modes of transport.

7.12 A neighbour objection has been raised that the increase in size and number of bedrooms will
increase the demand on parking provision. The Highway Authority have commented on the
proposal and have no objection in terms of highway safety.

8.0 CONCLUSION AND RECOMMENDATION

8.1 It is considered that the amended design and boundary treatment would not result in
substantial or demonstrable harm to the streetscene and character and appearance of the
wider area. The proposal provides adequate access and parking arrangements and would
not unduly affect the residential amenity of neighbouring properties or the setting of nearby
listed buildings. It is considered that the proposal would accord with relevant policies as
outlined above. Therefore, it is recommended that planning permission be granted subject to
the following conditions.

CONDITIONS:

1. The works hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of five years from the date of
this consent.

Reason: Required to be imposed by Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990
as amended by Section 51 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004.

2.  The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the following
approved documents:

- Site plan and streetscene Drawing Number 21124/02J received 16" December 2020

- Proposed Elevations and Floor plans for Plot 1 Drawing Number 21124/04J received 11"
November 2020

- Section Plan received 17" December 2020

Except where these may be modified by any other conditions attached to this permission.

Reason: To ensure that the development is carried out in accordance with the approved plans.
3. The external building materials shall be in accordance with the approved details

Walling - Natural Cotswold stone as per no. 10 Aesops Orchard.

Roofing - Natural slate tile as per no. 10 Aesops Orchard

Windows/doors - black upvc as per 10 Aesops Orchard

The materials of the side boundary wall between plots 1 and 2 to be red brick Wienerburger
Reclaimed Sovereign stock.

89



Reason: To ensure that the external appearance of the proposed development will be in
keeping with the character of the area and adjoining buildings in the interests of visual
amenity.

The proposed vehicular access onto Bushcombe Lane shall not be brought into use until the
visibility splay lines have been provided in accordance with the submitted details as shown on
drawing no. 21124 02 Rev J, with the area in advance of the splay lines maintained
permanently clear of obstructions to visibility at a height not exceeding 0.9 metres above the
adjacent carriageway level, unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

Reason: To reduce the potential highway impact by ensuring that adequate car parking is
available within the site in the interests of highway safety.

Prior to the occupation of the proposed dwellings the new western vehicular access onto
Bushcombe Lane shall be laid out and constructed in accordance with the drawing no. 21124
02 Rev J with any gates hung so as not to open out towards the highway and the area within
5m of the carriageway edge surfaced in bituminous macadam or other approved material and
thereafter similarly maintained.

Reason: To ensure a satisfactory means of access is provided and maintained in the interests
of highway safety

The development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved ground levels and
finished floor levels as shown on drawing no. 21124 02 Rev J and Section Plan received 17%
December 2020 unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

Reason: To ensure that the development integrates harmoniously with its surroundings and
does not adversely impact upon existing residential properties.

The drainage shall be implemented in accordance with the approved scheme as shown on
drawing no. 21124 02 Rev E.

Reason: To ensure that the development is provided with a satisfactory means of drainage as
well as to reduce the risk of creating or exacerbating flooding problems and to minimise the
risk of pollution, in accordance

Notwithstanding the submitted plans and the provisions of the Town and Country Planning
(General Permitted Development) Order 1995 (or any Order revoking and re-enacting that
Order) there shall be no first floor windows or roof lights in the west facing elevation of Plot 1
unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

Reason: To ensure that the development does not adversely impact upon existing residential
properties.

A schedule for the maintenance of the Portuguese Laurel hedge shall be submitted to agreed
with the local Planning Authority within one year of their planting. The hedge shall be
maintained at a height of below 2.5 m on the rear boundary and on the side boundary
adjacent to Aesops Orchard not exceed 2 m in height. The planting shall be maintained in
accordance with the approved schedule of maintenance. Any trees or plants which, within a
period of five years from the completion of the planting, die, are removed or become seriously
damaged or diseased shall be replaced in the next planting season with others of similar size
and species.

Reason: To ensure the proposed development does not have an adverse effect on the
character and appearance of the area.

90



INFORMATIVES:

In accordance with the requirements of the NPPF the Local Planning Authority has sought to
determine the application in a positive and proactive manner by offering pre-application
advice, publishing guidance to assist the applicant, and publishing to the council's website
relevant information received during the consideration of the application thus enabling the
applicant to be kept informed as to how the case was proceeding.

91



r2o/¢ZIz  oN Beg

BLOZ jequeides L]
e Boor | W B oz oesg
pasadald 8y
SUCHRAN JBRAS PU LTI IS
S0 LmUBLD
PIOAIBLIEOONY
pimpuQ sdosiy
asopy seddos) je puer]
ok saneyy ]

I FBWOIHENE NOLLY T3 133415 03504084

92



3
H é {gz

Pl
SRt 1}

Plans and Elevations { Plot 1)

As Proposed

1:100 @ A1, 1200 @ A3

September 2018

Scale

Date

g
2
&

A
L
0]
(et
0]
>
O

SIDE ELEVATION

SIDE ELEVATION

FRONT ELEVATION

|||““

SIDE ELEVATION

REAR ELEVATION

SIDE ELEVATION

|“|H|mn\|| O

‘ H“"hllhllll I||| i

N HHHH &

* %

g :

i

S *
] :

FIRST FLOOR PLAN

GROUND FLOOR PLAN

PLOT 1



Secnon (\\

LANS ; f
AESXS |
o ( T AESORS
DT L) E,
-AS BuiL = =
|200 MM
LOMM
£ 1 —
5
BRACK. WALL ot
AND RAL
—PRROSED e = FENCE - INPLACE.
e
1 10 AESORS PoT |
[ HSOIM\ (lb‘ '.D‘) ORCHARD
T AMSER TR MM
pLGTL - e
-
.
2200mm|-L—
= 4
ScALE 1320 94 20002 u0/FuL



Agenda ltem 6
TEWKESBURY BOROUGH COUNCIL

Report to: Planning Committee

Date of Meeting: 19 January 2021

Subject: Current Appeals and Appeal Decisions Update
Report of: Development Manager

Corporate Lead: Head of Development Services

Lead Member: Lead Member for Built Environment

Number of Appendices: One

Executive Summary:

To inform Members of current planning and enforcement appeals and Ministry of Housing,
Communities and Local Government (MHCLG) appeal decisions issued.

Recommendation:
To CONSIDER the report.

Reasons for Recommendation:

To inform Members of recent appeal decisions.

Resource Implications:

None.

Legal Implications:

None.

Risk Management Implications:

None.

Performance Management Follow-up:

None.

Environmental Implications:

None.

95



1.0

11

2.0

2.1

INTRODUCTION/BACKGROUND

At each Planning Committee meeting, Members are informed of current planning and
enforcement appeals and Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local Government
(MHCLG) appeal decisions that have recently been issued.

APPEAL DECISIONS

(A) Appeal Decisions

Application No 19/00865/FUL

Location 6 The Square
Toddington
Cheltenham
Gloucestershire
GL54 5DJ

Proposal Construction of 3 no. outbuildings comprising a garden
room, double garage and gazebo.

Officer recommendation | Split decision

Decision type Committee Decision

PINS reference APP/G1630/W/20/3252374

PINS decision Split (part allowed & part dismissed)
Reason Officer to summarise decision

The Inspector judged that the garden room would
diminish the significance of Toddington House and the
associated Historic Park and Garden, resulting in harm to
their settings. The Inspector also agreed that the proposal
would sit within the root protection zone of TPO’d trees
therefore damaging the trees and their contribution to the
significance of the park and character and appearance of
the AONB.

Likewise, the garage would be incongruous and
detrimental to the significance of The Square, the Park,
the church and the House and would have an adverse
effect on their settings.

The gazebo however was judged not to result in any
harm in accordance with the Council’s decision.

The Inspector thus agreed with the Council that a split
decision, permitting the gazebo, but refusing the garden
room and garage.

Date of appeal decision | 08.12.2020

96



(A) Appeal Decisions

Application No

20/00344/PIP

Location

Land At

Pirton Lane
Churchdown
Gloucester
Gloucestershire

Proposal

The residential development of the site comprising the
erection of between 1 and 2 dwellings.

Officer recommendation

Refuse

Decision type

Delegated Decision

PINS reference

APP/G1630/W/20/3257211

PINS decision

Appeal Dismissed and Planning Permission Refused

Reason

The scope of permission in principle is limited to location,
land use and amounts of development.

The appeal site is located in and the Inspector found that
although the site is surrounded on three sides by
residential development, the appeal site is large and
neighbouring plots to the side have extensive gardens,
meaning that there is not a limited gap to fill, and the
proposal would not constitute built-up development, both
of which the Inspector considered to be integral to the
definition of infill. In addition, the Inspector acknowledged
the proposed houses would be behind the building line
associated with the curve in Green Lane and The Green,
and this configuration means that the site is both behind
and adjacent to the village, rather than ‘in’ the village.

For those reasons the Inspector concluded that the site is
not in the village and does not comprise infill therefore the
proposal would be inappropriate development in the
Green Belt.

Further to this, the Inspector considered that the proposal
would permanently reduce the essential openness of the
Green Belt.

In terms of location, the Inspector concluded that the site
is not in the village, nor well related to existing built
development therefore the appeal site is not a suitable
location for residential development.

The appeal site is also within a Special Landscape Area
(SLA). The Inspector confirmed that by adding between
one and two houses and domestic paraphernalia in such
a highly prominent location, beyond the existing
development would cause significant harm to the SLA, in
conflict with Policies SD6 of the JCS and LND2 of the
Tewkesbury Borough Local Plan to 2011.

The Inspector also considered the proposal would have a
negative effect on one of the critical views to and from
Chosen Hill, as defined by Policy CHIN13 of the
Churchdown and Innsworth Neighbourhood Plan (2018 —
2031).

97




3.0

3.1

4.0

4.1

5.0

5.1

6.0

6.1

7.0

7.1

8.0

8.1

9.0

9.1

10.0

10.1

11.0

111

In the planning balance, the Inspector concluded that the
harm to the Green Belt by way of inappropriateness and
the other identified harms would not be clearly
outweighed by other considerations so as to amount to
the very special circumstances necessary to justify the
proposed development and therefore, having had regard
to all other matters raised, the Inspector dismissed the
appeal.

Date of appeal decision | 14 December 2020

ENFORCEMENT APPEAL DECISIONS

None.

OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED

None.

CONSULTATION

None.

RELEVANT COUNCIL POLICIES/STRATEGIES
None.

RELEVANT GOVERNMENT POLICIES

None.

RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS (Human/Property)
None.

SUSTAINABILITY IMPLICATIONS (Social/Community Safety/Cultural/ Economic/
Environment)

None.

IMPACT UPON (Value For Money/Equalities/E-Government/Human Rights/Health
And Safety)

None.
RELATED DECISIONS AND ANY OTHER RELEVANT FACTS

None.

Background Papers: None

Contact Officer: Appeals Administrator

01684 272062 AppealsAdmin@tewkesbury.gov.uk

Appendices: Appendix 1: List of Appeals received

98



List of Appeals Received

Appendix 1

. . Date Appeal| Appeal [Appeal|Statement
Reference Address Description Lodged |Procedure |Officer Due
20/00045/ENFORC Severnside |Unauthorised 03.12.2020|W WIC
Farm change of use to
Walham land to residential
use of mobile
home.
20/00042/NONDET |Cotswold Erection of a single |03.12.2020\W SNB
House storey side
Post Office |extension and patio
Lane area. Creation of
Cleeve Hill |new access and
parking area with
retaining wall.
19/00090/FUL |Land Construction of 09/12/2020|H PAI
Adjacent To |three affordable
Rosedale dwellings with
Boddington ([landscaping and
Road associated works
Boddington
19/00400/CLE Court Farm  |Lawful 14.12.2020|l VIS
Tewkesbury |Development
Road Certificate
Twigworth  |(Existing) for the
use of land for the
storage of caravans
and motorhomes.

Process Type

FAS
HH
W

H

99

indicates FastTrack Household Appeal Service
indicates Householder Appeal
indicates Written Reps
indicates Informal Hearing

I indicates Public Inquiry




	Agenda
	4 Minutes
	5a 20/00446/FUL - 51 Sandycroft Road, Churchdown
	5a - 20.00446.FUL - 51 Sandycroft Rd Plans

	5b 20/00993/FUL - 26 Winston Road, Churchdown
	5b - 20.00993.ful - 26 Winston Road Plans

	5c 20/00732/FUL - 3 Hertford Road, Bishops Cleeve
	5c - 20,00732.FUL - 3 Hertford Road Plans

	5d 20/01006/FUL - 34 Rosefield Crescent, Newtown
	5d - 20.01006.ful 34 Rosefield Crescent Plans

	5e 20/00107/FUL - Buckland Manor Farm, Buckland
	5e - 20.00107.FUL - Buckland Manor Farm Plans

	5f 20/00240/FUL - Copper Close, Bushcombe Lane, Woodmancote
	5f - 20.00240.FUL - Copper Close Plans

	6 Current Appeals and Appeal Decisions Update



